
 
 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

HOUSING AND REGENERATION 
SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

Tuesday 15th December 2020, 6.30 pm - MS Teams meeting (view it 
here ) 
 
Members: Councillors Ruth Gordon (Chair), Dawn Barnes, Zena Brabazon, 
Isidoros Diakides, Makbule Gunes, Bob Hare and Yvonne Say 
 
Co-optees/Non Voting Members:  
 
Quorum: 3 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note that this meeting will be recorded by the Council for live or 

subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending 

the meeting using any communication method. Members of the public 

participating in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, 

making oral protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, 

recorded or reported on. 

 

By entering the meeting, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 

possible use of those images and sound recordings. 

 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business 
(late items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New 
items will be dealt with as noted below).  
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YjZmYzZkOGQtZWNhMi00MWI3LTliMGItNDZmN2M2YjVhODY2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22d1dc05de-ecbd-4e6c-b7b3-3a52b6175baf%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


 

 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS   
 
To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, 
Paragraph 29 of the Council’s Constitution.  
 

6. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 14) 
 
To approve the minutes of the previous meeting.   
 

7. SCRUTINY OF THE 2021/22 DRAFT BUDGET / 5 YEAR MEDIUM TERM 
FINANCIAL STRATEGY (2021/22 - 2025/26)  (PAGES 15 - 118) 
 

To scrutinise the revenue and capital proposals relating to the 2021/22 Draft 
Budget and the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26. 

 
8. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   

 
To consider any items admitted at item 3 above. 
 

9. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

 2nd March 2021 
 
 

 
Dominic O'Brien, Principal Scrutiny Officer, 020 8489 5896 
Tel – 020 8489 5896 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: dominic.obrien@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Monday, 07 December 2020 
 



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE HOUSING AND 
REGENERATION SCRUTINY PANEL HELD ON THURSDAY 19th 
NOVEMBER 2020, 6:30pm - 10.00pm 
 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillors: Ruth Gordon (Chair), Dawn Barnes, Zena Brabazon, 
Isidoros Diakides, Makbule Gunes, Bob Hare and Yvonne Say 
 

 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 

The Chair referred Members present to agenda Item 1 as shown on the agenda in 

respect of filming at this meeting, and Members noted the information contained 

therein’. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
None. 

 
3. URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 

 
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 

 
5. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS  

 
The Panel received a deputation from Sarah Klymkiw and Michael Jones on behalf of 

a number of leaseholders in the Noel Park area of Wood Green. It was noted that a 

similar deputation had been made to the meeting of the Full Council on 16th November 

2020.  

 

Sarah Klymkiw introduced the deputation covering the following key points: 

 That in September 2020, a number of leaseholders on Gladstone Avenue in 

Noel Park were issued with Section 20 Notices for major works incurring costs 

of up to £120,000 for some households. The leaseholders understand that 

these are the second highest set of estimates for leaseholder work that have 

been issued anywhere in the UK.  

 The affected properties are maisonettes in the Noel Park conservation area. In 

the early 1970s the Council had installed temporary prefabricated bathroom 

Page 1 Agenda Item 6



 

‘pod’ structures to the rear of the properties which should have been removed 

30 years ago. Sarah Klymkiw said that she understood from comments made 

by Cllr Ejiofor at the Full Council meeting on 16th November 2020 that these 

structures were now considered to be unsafe so she queried how long the 

Council had had concerns about this and why action had not been taken 

sooner.  

 In the 1970s, residents had been offered the option not to have a pod at all. 

However, in 2020 residents were not being given that option as they were 

being told that the old pods will be replaced with new pods despite other 

options being possible. The justification for this appeared to be convenience 

rather than sustainability or value for money because the change could be 

made in a day without the need for residents to be decanted. 

 Leaseholders had been told by the Council that the new pods would last as 

long as brick built structures, which she said were claims that simply parroted 

the manufacturers’ PR. She said that the 60-year warranty for the pods did not 

mean that they would actually last for that long or that the cladding would not 

need replacing as it was a risk-based warranty for mortgage purposes.  

 The proposals also involved replacing windows and doors, but no justification 

for the need for these works had been given and tenants were now concerned 

that these extra works would cause delays to the work on their bathrooms.  

 Detailed individual surveys would be carried out only after the contracts had 

been signed which raised concerns about the impartiality of the surveys in 

terms of incentives to drive down costs or determining the works that are 

necessary.  

 In the opinion of residents, communications and consultation had been handled 

very poorly by Homes for Haringey (HfH) and many questions from residents 

had not been answered.  

 Leaseholders agreed that the situation with the pods needed to be addressed, 

did not want to prevent tenants from benefitting from these works and did not 

expect the money to come from the rent of tenants. However, the leaseholders 

had been led to believe that the costs to leaseholders would be in the region of 

£25,000, but the expected costs were now ruinous as they reached figures of 

up to £120,000 and she said that leaseholders should not have to pay for 

Council failings. The only solution being explored was flexible payment plans 

that would do nothing to address the overall cost.  

 The leaseholders proposed that the scheme for new pods be scrapped and that 

the Council and HfH work with leaseholders to explore alternative options that 

offer best value for money.  

 

Sarah Klymkiw and Michael Jones then responded to questions from the Panel:  

 Cllr Hare asked if there had been anything like a 20-year notice to allow for the 

leaseholders to plan ahead. Sarah Klymkiw said that, in her case, when she 

purchased her flat five years ago she was told was the cost of the pod would be 

Page 2



 

£12,500 and so they borrowed on the mortgage accordingly. When going 

through the process of buying the property the quoted cost then jumped to 

£25,000. However, there was no indication that the costs would ever reach the 

current amount of £108,000 that was now being estimated which would 

effectively be a second mortgage. Leaseholders had tried to engage in 

dialogue with HfH about possible solutions and there had been no indication of 

the level of costs until leaseholders received S20 notices. The only other option 

offered by HfH was to relinquish some equity. Michael Jones added that the 

first that he had been aware of the costs associated with the bathrooms was in 

2009 when the figures for costs talked about were £20,000. He had yet to 

receive a full breakdown of costs which he said was another example of the 

lack of information being provided by HfH.  

 Cllr Brabazon asked whether Sarah Klymkiw had received a reply to her letter 

of 21st Oct 2020 to Tracey Downie at HfH which included a number of 

questions. Sarah Klymkiw said that she had not yet received a reply and had 

been notified by the Council on 12th Nov 2020 that there would be a delay.  Cllr 

Brabazon requested that the members of the deputation keep the committee 

informed about any response that they received.  

 Cllr Brabazon asked about the cladding and the potential fire risk associated 

with the new pods. Sarah Klymkiw said that there were a lot of unanswered 

questions on this, many of which had been included in the letter to Tracey 

Downie. Cllr Brabazon observed that the wrong type of cladding can render 

properties uninsurable.  

 Cllr Brabazon asked about the door-step meetings with Cllr Ibrahim and Sean 

McLaughlin on 8th Oct 2020 quoted in the letter to Tracie Downie. Sarah 

Klymkiw said that these were impromptu meetings and she did not feel that the 

leaseholders’ main concerns were addressed through these meetings.  

 Cllr Barnes asked whether there had been the opportunity for leaseholders to 

have formal meetings with officers. Michael Jones said that there were two 

formal meetings, one in November 2019 and one in summer 2020. Since the 

S20 notices had been issued there had been a further meeting with the Leader 

of the Council (Cllr Joe Ejiofor) and the Managing Director of HfH (Sean 

McLaughlin). At the November 2019 meeting no indication had been given of 

the potential high costs that were now being quoted. Cllr Gordon asked if any 

minutes had been taken at the meeting with the Leader of the Council. Michael 

Jones said that he was not aware of minutes being taken and had not been 

notified of minutes being taken.  

 Robbie Erbmann, AD for Housing, informed the Panel that there were 242 

properties that the works were planned for, 76 of which were leasehold 

properties (39 resident leaseholders and 37 non-resident leaseholders).  

 Asked by Cllr Diakides about the potential for alternative options, Sarah 

Klymkiw said that the leaseholders wanted a pause to be able to discuss 

options with officers and Cabinet Members. Alternative options could include: 

Page 3



 

o not having a pod at all and to incorporate the bathrooms back into the 

properties; 

o to renovate and reclad the existing pods, estimated to cost around £10,000 

per pod; 

o to create permanent brick-built structures on the back of the properties. 

 Asked by Cllr Brabazon whether the leaseholders had received a full 

breakdown of the estimated costs, Sarah Klymkiw said that she had only 

received a partial breakdown and that leaseholders had requested further 

information but were still waiting for this. 

 Asked by Cllr Brabazon whether the leaseholders had been invited to attend 

meetings with officers/Cabinet Members, Sarah Klymkiw said that there were 

no meetings booked in but Catherine West MP had offered to Chair a meeting 

on their behalf. The leaseholders intended to take her up on this offer and 

would also be writing to Cllr Ejiofor to request his attendance. Michael Jones 

added that a recent letter from Cllr Ejiofor indicated that he would “be in touch 

shortly to confirm how we will conduct a further programme of engagement”. 

 

Cllr Gordon thanked Sarah Klymkiw and Michael Jones for their deputation and for the 

information pack that they provided to the Panel. Cllr Gordon said that the Panel was 

not in a position to answer the questions raised through the deputation as the Leader 

of the Council would be responsible for this. Cllr Gordon proposed that a special 

meeting of the Panel be held to which the Leader of the Council and others would be 

invited so that the Panel could put these questions to him directly.  

 

RESOLVED: That a special meeting of the Housing & Regeneration scrutiny 

panel be organised to discuss the issues raised by the leaseholders of Noel 

Park and that the Leader of the Council be invited to attend to respond to 

questions from the Panel.  

 
6. MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 14th September 2020 were approved as 

an accurate record. 

 
7. CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS - STRATEGIC REGENERATION  

 
Cllr Charles Adje, Cabinet Member for Finance and Strategic Regeneration, 

responded to questions from the Panel on regeneration issues: 

 Cllr Yvonne Say asked about the take up on priority-option purchasing for local 

residents at major residential developments at Tottenham Hale. Cllr Adje said 

that he did not have that information to hand and that this matter fell under the 

Housing portfolio rather than his Regeneration portfolio. He said that he would 

discuss this with officers and arrange for this information to be provided to the 

Panel. (ACTION) Cllr Diakides added that these kind of measures were 

Page 4



 

important factors when the Planning Committee makes its determinations on 

planning applications so this information would be useful to see in order to 

monitor how effective the measures have been. Rob Krzyszowski, Head of 

Planning Policy, Transport and Infrastructure, informed the Panel that all the 

Section 106 (S106) agreements were monitored including the clauses on 

priority housing for local residents. The more detailed monitoring was carried 

out by the Housing Enabling team. Asked by Cllr Diakides which Cabinet 

Member and senior officer was responsible for S106 agreements, Cllr Adje said 

that these were Cllr Matt White (Cabinet Member for Planning and Corporate 

Services) and Rob Krzyszowski.  

 Cllr Brabazon asked whether any data was available on the progression of 

sales at Tottenham Hale. Cllr Adje said that he would need to engage with the 

Housing Enabling team to obtain that information, which he would then provide 

to the Panel. (ACTION)  

 Cllr Brabazon asked for an update on negotiations with the GLA on funding for 

the redevelopment at Love Lane/High Road West. Cllr Adje said that more 

information was currently being awaited on this from GLA on next steps. He 

indicated that he would be happy to provide a further written update to the 

Panel if more information on this became available. (ACTION). Asked by Cllr 

Diakides which Cabinet Member and senior officer was responsible for GLA 

negotiations, Cllr Adje said that the Regeneration team would usually lead in 

this area where he was the responsible Cabinet Member, supported by Peter 

O’Brien (Assistant Director for Regeneration and Economic Development). The 

Housing department may also be required to contribute in this area, led by 

Robbie Erbmann (Assistant Director for Housing).  

 Cllr Say asked for an update on the Wood Green Area Action Plan (AAP). Cllr 

Adje said that the Plan had been revised following the last consultation, but the 

Planning Policy team were still awaiting a decision to be made on the Council’s 

Accommodation Strategy. A number of sites within the AAP area were currently 

owned by the Council so the outcome of the Accommodation Strategy would 

have a significant bearing on the allocations and guidance and it would be 

premature to progress the AAP before this point. Asked by Cllr Gordon for a 

possible timescale on this work, Cllr Adje said that he could not provide a 

timescale but an engagement process with Members on the Accommodation 

Strategy would be taking place shortly and after this the next steps should 

become clearer. Asked by Cllr Hare whether there was anything to report on 

the possible Crossrail links relevant to the AAP and whether Panel Members 

could be provided with some written information explaining the current position, 

Cllr Adje said that he had nothing new to report on this. He added that the 

proposals were primarily the responsibility of TfL but he would find out what 

information could be provided to the Panel. (ACTION) 

 Cllr Gordon asked for details on the Council’s commercial portfolio, including on 

vacancy levels, the impact of Covid on the budget and what strategy was in 

place to maximise revenue. Cllr Adje said that in Q1 an offer was made for 

anyone experiencing difficulties given the Covid situation to contact the 

Commercial Portfolio Unit to discuss their requirements. The number of 

Page 5



 

contacts received from this offer was low but there was engagement with those 

that did, dealt with on a case-by-case basis. The process was repeated in 

June, again with a low number of new contacts received. As a result, a total of 

83 rent deferrals were agreed in total. This has since reduced to 59 as some 

tenants have been able to pay in full or in part. There had been very few voids 

as a result of Covid, but with further adverse effects of Covid and the second 

lockdown on tenants, some increase in voids was expected in future with a 

consequent negative impact on commercial income. The Strategic Property 

Team has continued their work to conclude new leases and lease renewals 

which had resulted in some increases being achieved in rental income. The 

upgrading of commercial units was currently being looked at and an update 

would be available when work had progressed. Cllr Gordon asked if a written 

update could be provided detailing how many voids there were and what 

impact the reduction in income amounted to in actual figures. (ACTION) 

 Cllr Gordon asked how many staff within Regeneration were directly employed 

by the Council and how many were retained on consultancies or as interims. 

Cllr Adje said that most Regeneration staff were permanent employees and 

less than 1% of staff were interims, either covering short-term pressures or 

utilising specific technical skills. The Regeneration team was constantly 

reviewing the need for interims and always looked to utilise the most efficient 

way of securing the resources required. Cllr Brabazon said that the 1% figure 

did not provide enough detail and asked for a more detailed breakdown 

explaining how many consultants and temporary staff were in use. (ACTION) 

Cllr Diakides observed that an audit seen by the Corporate Committee had 

raised concerns about the use of interim consultants in the property section. 

Cllr Adje said that the property team was not in his Regeneration portfolio but 

noted that the issues had been discussed at Corporate Committee and steps 

were being taken to deal with those matters.  

 
8. HOUSING DELIVERY PROGRAMME UPDATE  

 
Introducing this item, Cllr Ruth Gordon noted that the Panel was already familiar with 

this programme but wished to continue monitoring it on an ongoing basis including 

any ‘red flag’ issues. She noted that the Housing team had provided a spreadsheet to 

the Panel listing the housing delivery sites.  

 

Robbie Erbmann, AD for Housing, said that good progress had been made on the 

number of sites on the programme in the previous couple of months and seven new 

people had been recruited to the team. Building work was progressing at Joy Gardner 

House on Templeton Road which was the first direct delivery site. Despite the 

lockdown, the team was feeling confident about hitting 1,000 starts by March 2022, 

though it would take quite a lot longer than originally planned to reach 1,000 

completions.  

 

Robbie Erbmann then responded to questions from Panel Members:  

Page 6



 

 Asked by Cllr Gunes about the potential impact of Covid or other adverse 

factors on the programme, Robbie Erbmann said that there had been a 

significant impact on the programme caused by the first lockdown, such as 

migration of staff to online working, the pausing of work on some sites and the 

shortage of some building supplies. The impact of Covid was continuing in the 

second wave with most sites estimated to be working at only approximately 

two-thirds of their normal pace but the same pattern of problems was not being 

seen in the second lockdown when compared to the first.  

 Askes by Cllr Barnes what a realistic timescale for the 1,000 completions would 

be, Robbie Erbmann said that the latest estimates were for May/June 2024, 

though the timescales for this type of project does often change.  

 Asked by Cllr Barnes what a realistic housing completion target for the next 

administration might be, Robbie Erbmann said that there were now sites with 

capacity for up to 2,000 under active development so, given the time required 

to get developments planned and built on a site, finishing the 1,000 

completions and then getting a further 1,000 starts on site could be a 

reasonable target for a 2022-26 administration.  

 Asked by Cllr Barnes about demand for different types of home, Robbie 

Erbmann said that the existing aim was to build decent sized homes with 

outdoor space and he wasn’t sure that the pandemic had dramatically changed 

people’s housing needs, but should make everyone resolute not to deliver bad 

housing because poor quality accommodation causes additional problems for 

people in such circumstances.  

 Asked by Cllr Barnes about the potential impact of Brexit on the programme, 

Robbie Erbmann said that this would depend on whether there was any 

disruption in the market or on building supplies. The supply of labour could also 

be a problem, and while local labour initiatives and apprenticeships could play 

a part in encouraging local people into the industry, the shortage of labour 

could impact negatively on timescales for the programme. As this was a 

national issue, it would be difficult to mitigate against these problems, not least 

because contractors for around half the programme had not been selected yet.  

 Cllr Brabazon welcomed the spreadsheet listing the housing delivery sites but 

noted that it did not include more information about each project and said that 

the Panel needed to see more detail on the progress and finances for each 

site. Robbie Erbmann said that some information can be shared with the Panel, 

but other details, such as commercially sensitive financial information, cannot 

be shared. Robbie Erbmann said that another conversation about specifically 

what information can be shared with the Panel could take place after the 

meeting. (ACTION) Cllr Brabazon accepted that commercially sensitive 

information was confidential but said that the most important aspect that the 

Panel needed to see was the project management information which showed 

which aspects of the programme were making progress and where there was 

slippage.  

Page 7



 

 In response to a question from Cllr Diakides, Robbie Erbmann said that about 

200 completions could be expected by March 2022. He said that he did not 

have figures to hand on how many of these would be direct delivery and how 

many would be acquisitions but would supply this information after the meeting. 

(ACTION)  

 Asked by Cllr Diakides about whether there was any risk of underspending 

GLA subsidies for housing, Robbie Erbmann said that he was comfortable that 

the Council’s allocation would be spent. The allocation was to start 600 homes 

on site by March 2022, but his expectation was that it could go some way 

beyond that.  

 Asked by Cllr Diakides about weaknesses in consultation processes, Robbie 

Erbmann said that two new people had been recruited to work on engagement 

and consultation. This brought the number of staff up to a team of three and it 

was possible that further resources may need to be added. There were around 

70 sites in the programme which would require a lot of consultation. He added 

that moving to online consultation processes was also a difficult new aspect 

that everyone was learning to do better.  

 Asked by Cllr Gunes for more general information about the programme, 

Robbie Erbmann noted that a summary report had been provided to the Panel 

at the previous meeting on 14th September. This was before Cllr Gunes had 

joined the Panel but the report and minutes were available on the website. Any 

further information required could be provided on request.  

 Asked by Cllr Gordon whether building work on the Welbourne site had 

stopped due to Covid, Robbie Erbmann said that a number of workers had to 

come off site for a short period but the progress on the site was actually ahead 

of schedule so this was not expected to have a major impact on the 

programme. 

 

Cllr Gordon proposed that the Housing Delivery Programme should become a 

standing item for future Panel meetings. (ACTION)  

 

Community Benefit Society  

 

Robbie Erbmann then introduced the report on the Community Benefit Society (CBS). 

He said that in July 2018 the Cabinet had agreed to establish the CBS which enables 

the Council to acquire homes using retained Right to Buy receipts and lease them to 

the CBS, which then lets them to homeless households. The leases last for seven 

years after which the properties return to the Council’s HRA. The additional income 

generated from the lease helps the Council to secure higher quality homes in, or near, 

the borough; and also ensures that these homes are let at affordable levels.  

 

The CBS had been operational for about a year and it was now leasing 134 homes, of 

which 129 were occupied. Another 20 properties were expected to be leased in the 

Page 8



 

next month. In addition, 21 modular units from Ermine Road would be leased from 

March. An additional donation of 16 units had been received from the Hill Foundation.  

 

To date, £46.7m had been spent on these properties, 30% of which came from 

retained Right to Buy receipts.  

 

Robbie Erbmann then responded to questions from the Panel:  

 Asked by Cllr Say what would happen to properties outside the Borough after 

the seven year period, Robbie Erbmann said that they could be sold, but that 

there was already some Council housing outside of the Borough so there would 

be a number of options, including another seven-year lease.  

 In response to a question from Cllr Brabazon, Robbie Erbmann said that 

Homes for Haringey (HfH) provide the housing management on behalf of the 

CBS. Cllr Brabazon asked about an incident of overflowing rubbish at the IBSA 

blocks in Barnet which are owned by the CBS, as it had been difficult to 

establish responsibility for the housing management. Robbie Erbmann said that 

the problem had been caused by the properties being furnished and then 

residents taking their own furniture out of storage resulting in some furniture 

being left outside the blocks. All residents had been contacted and items were 

being removed by the HfH Estate Services team.  

 Asked by Cllr Brabazon for further details about governance structures, Robbie 

Erbmann said that the CBS had five Board Members. Of these, two were 

appointed by the Council (of which he was one) and three were independent. 

The management services were provided by HfH and problems were dealt with 

in the same way as any other properties in the Council’s portfolio. An ALMO 

client management team was being introduced which would include a role 

specifically for looking after the CBS properties.  

 

Due to time constraints, it was agreed that the report on Woodside Avenue be 

deferred to the next meeting. (ACTION) 

 
9. CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS - HOUSING AND ESTATE RENEWAL  

 
Cllr Emine Ibrahim, Cabinet Member for Housing and Estate Renewal, responded to 

questions from the Panel: 

 Cllr Gunes asked about the type of social housing to be delivered through the 

Housing Delivery Programme. Cllr Ibrahim said that all of the social rent 

properties to be delivered through the programme would be Council homes at 

Council rent levels. 

 Asked by Cllr Diakides whether she was confident that the financial problems 

with ALMOs experienced in Croydon could not occur in Haringey. Cllr Ibrahim 

said that a number of solutions had been put forward by various Councils over 

the years to try to meet the challenge of delivering social housing. Haringey 

Page 9



 

Council had decided to deliver this through the HRA a couple of years ago, 

when the HRA borrowing cap was lifted, so she was confident that Haringey 

would not end up in the same situation.  

 Cllr Diakides asked about weaknesses in consultation processes, Cllr Ibrahim 

said that she was aware of the issues, which were common across the sector, 

and expressed concerns about the problems of engaging with hard to reach 

groups. This would be exacerbated by the need to rely on online solutions in 

the current circumstances so it would be important to continue to try to find 

solutions.  

 In relation to the Housing Delivery Programme, Cllr Brabazon asked about the 

West Indian Cultural Centre which was marked on the spreadsheet provided to 

the Council as ‘direct delivery’, though she said that her understanding was that 

it was being delivered through Paul Simon Magic Homes. Cllr Ibrahim said that, 

to her knowledge, there was an ongoing conversation with the Cultural Centre 

about delivering something in partnership. Robbie Erbmann added that there 

was a long leasehold interest at the Centre, which had an existing relationship 

with Paul Simon Magic Homes, but that did not necessary mean that the 

Council would need to deliver the new homes through this route. In response to 

further questions, he added that there was no current agreement between the 

Council as freeholder and the leaseholder interest to deliver a scheme.  

 Cllr Brabazon queried why Stokely Court and Chettle Court were listed on the 

Housing Delivery Programme spreadsheet as she had understood that these 

were not being put up for development. Cllr Ibrahim said that, in relation to 

Stokely Court, the debate had been on the type of development and what 

happened to the existing blocks and not on whether there would be more 

homes delivered there. The Council did intend to deliver something on this site, 

but a conclusion had not been reached on what this would look like. She said 

that, in relation to Chettle Court, the development would be on a piece of 

vacant land. This would not involve the demolition of the block and residents 

had been written letters to reassure them of this.  

 Cllr Say asked about Waltheof Gardens being listed on the Housing Delivery 

Programme spreadsheet as she understood that a conservation area was 

being extended to cover this area. Robbie Erbmann said that he would provide 

written information to the Panel on this site. (ACTION)  

 Cllr Gordon said that, of the 379 units listed as being delivered up to March 

2021, 320 were acquisitions rather than direct delivery. She asked whether this 

trend would continue throughout the programme. Cllr Ibrahim said that 

acquisitions were obviously quicker, so were showing up near the beginning of 

the programme, but this was not the basis of the programme as a whole. The 

acquisitions could only be purchased for the purpose of using them for Council 

rent if they could be obtained for the right price. She said that direct delivery 

would be the more sustainable option in the long-term. Cllr Gordon said 

however that the expected demolition of Council housing and the acquisition of 

Page 10



 

500 homes from Lendlease at Love Lane would continue the trend of 

acquisitions. Cllr Ibrahim said that this was a historic scheme and did not sit 

within her portfolio as it was a redevelopment issue.  

 Cllr Gordon asked about the number of staff employed in the Housing Delivery 

team and whether any of the team had been diverted to other duties because 

of Covid. Robbie Erbmann said that the team was now up to 25 staff and all 

were working directly on the programme and had not been diverted elsewhere. 

More staff would need to be recruited as the programme developed. Cllr 

Brabazon asked how this recruitment was being funded. Cllr Ibrahim said that 

they were funded through the HRA and Robbie Erbmann added that the costs 

can be capitalised as they were working on major capital programmes.   

 Asked by Cllr Brabazon how she engages with the HfH governance processes, 

Cllr Ibrahim said that she meets with the Managing Director of HfH, Sean 

McLaughlin on a regular basis. She confirmed that she attended the last Board 

meeting and would continue to do so.  

 Cllr Diakides asked whether the delivery of new homes by March 2022 could 

be speeded up. Cllr Ibrahim said that it would be difficult to do this as it was 

important not to cut corners in terms of planning and the quality of build.  

 Cllr Diakides asked about the cost of acquisitions and whether Council 

properties could be sold to the CBS rather than to developers when cross-

subsidies were required, Cllr Ibrahim said that this was a good question and 

that she would arrange for a written response to be provided to the Panel on 

this. (ACTION)  

 

Cllr Gordon noted that there had not been time to go through all the questions that 

had been submitted to Cllr Ibrahim in advance and it was agreed that the written 

answers should be circulated to the Panel. (ACTION)  

 
10. MAINTENANCE SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS - HOMES FOR HARINGEY  

 
Mark Baigent, Interim Executive Director of Property Services at Homes for Haringey 

(HfH) introduced the report for this item which set out how the communal repairs on 

Council estates are carried out by HfH. There were around 9,000 such repairs carried 

out each year and the report set out how those works were ordered and the 

improvements made in this area.  

 

Mark Baigent responded to questions from the Panel on the report:  

 Cllr Barnes noted the targets for response times as set out in paragraph 3.1.1 

of the report and asked how often these targets had been missed. Mark 

Baigent said that he did not have this information to hand and would respond 

on this in writing, noting that there are monthly performance indicators for the 

target time on emergency repairs and for non-urgent repairs. (ACTION) He 

explained that the data reported on was for all repairs and not just those in 

communal areas. Cllr Barnes said there would be no need to separate out the 

Page 11



 

communal repairs from the data as she would prefer to see the data for all 

repairs in full.  

 Asked by Cllr Barnes how residents report repairs if they do not use the App. 

Mark Baigent said that residents can call the Contact Centre which would 

report jobs through to the Repairs team at HfH.  

 Cllr Diakides asked whether there was a cyclical maintenance programme to 

minimise the long term costs. Mark Baigent said that HfH was working on a 

new Asset Management Strategy which would set out plans for the next five 

years and was scheduled to go to Cabinet for approval in January. This would 

cover all areas of the programme including cyclical works. Cllr Diakides 

suggested that the Panel should look at the Strategy to see if it could make any 

useful suggestions. (ACTION)  

 Asked by Cllr Diakides whether there was a sinking fund for leaseholders to 

pay in to cover maintenance costs, Mark Baigent said that he would look into 

this and provide a written response to the Panel. (ACTION)  

 Cllr Brabazon said that some communal areas on estates, such as Broadwater 

Farm, could sometimes be poorly lit and asked why improvements to these had 

not been carried out. Mark Baigent said that, as noted in the report, the 

Haringey Repairs Service will sometimes identify areas in need of improvement 

and major works in the course of carrying out a repair and will then provide a 

report to the Asset Management Team with their recommendations. He added 

that he would speak to David Sherrington, Director of Broadwater Farm, to see 

how had been built into their refurbishment plans for these blocks. (ACTION)  

 Cllr Barnes said that she was aware of cases when residents reported 

problems at annual site inspections and, though these were logged, residents 

later reported that the repairs had not been carried out. Mark Baigent said that 

the Estate Management staff who had carried out the inspection would feed the 

reports back to the Repairs team. There would then be conversations about the 

priority for works to be carried out and then orders placed on the repairs 

system. Safety issues would usually take priority. Mark Baigent confirmed that 

the reports were logged and could be tracked through the system. Cllr Gordon 

also described occasions when she had attended estate inspections where 

issues were diligently logged by officers only to find many of the same issues 

being reported again the following year having not been fixed. Mark Baigent 

said that he would need to take this feedback to look into why this was 

occurring.  

 
11. WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  

 
Cllr Gordon noted that the additional special meeting of the Panel on Noel Park would 

be added to the Work Programme.  

Cllr Gordon proposed that the remaining evidence sessions for the High Road West 

scrutiny review, which had been suspended earlier in the year due to the pandemic, 

Page 12



 

should be held in long sittings of the Panel, perhaps over two days. Cllr Hare agreed 

with this approach and expressed an interest in gathering further evidence on some of 

the examples of developments in Brussels that had been described by Professor Mark 

Brierley in his evidence to the Panel.  

 

Cllr Gordon also reported that she had been approached by the Chair of the Adults & 

Health scrutiny panel about the possibility of holding a joint scrutiny meeting on the 

subject of sheltered accommodation which could be added to the Work Programme.  

 

Cllr Diakides suggested that an item on funding models relating to the ALMO and the 

HRA and an item on asset disposals be added to the list of items to be considered by 

the Panel for future meetings.  

 

RESOLVED – That the Work Programme for 2020/21 be updated on the basis of 

the above discussion and circulated to the Panel.  

 
12. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

 

 15th Dec 2020 

 2nd Mar 2021 
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Ruth Gordon 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 

Report for:  Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny Panel, 15th December 
2020 

 
Title:  Scrutiny of the 2021/22 Draft Budget / 5 Year Medium Term 

Financial Strategy (2021/22-2025/26) 
 
Report authorised by: Jon Warlow, Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer 
 
Lead Officer:  Frances Palopoli, Head of Corporate Financial Strategy & 

Monitoring 
  
Ward(s) affected:  N/A  
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: N/A 

  
1. Describe the issue under consideration  

1.1 To consider and comment on the Council’s 2021/22 Draft Budget / 5-year 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2021/22 – 2025/26 proposals relating 
to the Scrutiny Panels’ remit.  

 

2. Recommendations  

2.1  That the Panels consider and provide recommendations to Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (OSC), on the 2021/22 Draft Budget/MTFS 2021/22-
2025/26 and proposals relating to the Scrutiny Panel’s remit.  

  

3. Background information  

3.1 The Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Constitution, Part 4, 
Section G) state: “The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall undertake 
scrutiny of the Council’s budget through a Budget Scrutiny process. The 
procedure by which this operates is detailed in the Protocol covering the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee”.  

3.2 Also laid out in this section is that “the Chair of the Budget Scrutiny Review 
process will be drawn from among the opposition party Councillors sitting on 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
shall not be able to change the appointed Chair unless there is a vote of no 
confidence as outlined in Article 6.5 of the Constitution”. 

 

4. Overview and Scrutiny Protocol 

4.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Protocol lays out the process of Budget Scrutiny 
and includes the following points: 

a. The budget shall be scrutinised by each Scrutiny Review Panel, in their 
respective areas. Their reports shall go to the OSC for approval. The areas 

Page 15 Agenda Item 7



 

of the budget which are not covered by the Scrutiny Review Panels shall be 
considered by the main OSC. 

b. A lead OSC member from the largest opposition group shall be responsible 
for the co-ordination of the Budget Scrutiny process and recommendations 
made by respective Scrutiny Review Panels relating to the budget. 

c. Overseen by the lead member referred to in paragraph 4.1.b, each Scrutiny 
Review Panel shall hold a meeting following the release of the December 
Cabinet report on the new Draft Budget/MTFS. Each Panel shall consider 
the proposals in this report, for their respective areas. The Scrutiny Review 
Panels may request that the Cabinet Member for Finance and/or Senior 
Officers attend these meetings to answer questions. 
 

d. Each Scrutiny Review Panel shall submit their final budget scrutiny report 
to the OSC meeting in January containing their recommendations/proposal 
in respect of the budget for ratification by the OSC. 

e. The recommendations from the Budget Scrutiny process, ratified by the 
OSC, shall be fed back to Cabinet. As part of the budget setting process, 
the Cabinet will clearly set out its response to the recommendations/ 
proposals made by the OSC in relation to the budget. 

 

5. 2021/22 Draft Budget & Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2021/26  
 

5.1 The MTFS agreed by Council in February 2020 assumed two years of relatively 
low budget gap (£1.9m & £3.1m) for 2021-2023; this was before the pandemic. 
The pandemic continues to have a significant adverse effect on the wider 
economy and public finances, reducing demand and supply in the short and 
medium term, presenting individuals, businesses and organisations with 
unprecedented challenges. The medium to long-term impact is unknown, 
though the OBR has forecast a return to pre-pandemic levels will not take place 
until late 2022. 

5.2 The impact of Covid-19, has been such that the Council has fundamentally 
reconsidered its corporate planning including its change programmes and, 
reviewing the outputs and learning from the Recovery and Renewal work to 
understand the changed context in which it now works.  

5.3 This Draft 2021/22 Budget and 2021/26 MTFS has sought to respond to this 
shift in Borough Plan via its General Fund (GF) and Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) financial strategies and capital investments, including a more holistic 
approach to achieving organisational transformation and associated revenue 
savings, via work that spans across the organisation’s departments. It also 
incorporates our best understanding of the ongoing implications of the COVID-
19 pandemic on our services and plans. It has been clear all the way through 
what have been many months of financial planning that this would be an 
extremely difficult budget for the Council. Before making any additional savings 
and the recent SR20 announcements, the Council’s forecast budget gap for 
21/22 had increased to £17m, an increase of £15m on the February forecast.  

Page 16



 

5.4 The recent SR 20 provides some level of financial improvement to this and other 
authorities for next year’s budget, including additional social care grants. 
However, the main opportunity it provides for local authorities, including this 
council, is to generate funding to protect services at this key moment by 
increasing its council tax income. This draft budget therefore includes an 
assumption of additional income from a general council tax increase of 1.99%  
(the threshold set by government is 2%) and a further Adults Social Care 
Precept of 3% (the maximum allowed by Government), which give a total 
council tax charge increase of 4.99%.  This proposed increase forms part of the 
budget consultation. 

5.5 As it stands (and before any late adjustments), the Council is able set out a 
balanced draft budget for 2021/22, but only with a significant one-off use of 
£5.4m of reserves. 

5.6 This meeting is asked to consider the proposals relating to the services within 
its remit and to make draft recommendations to be referred to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 18th January 2021 for discussion, prior to approval and 
referral to Cabinet for consideration in advance of the Full Council meeting on 
22nd February 2021. For reference the remit of each Scrutiny Panel is as 
follows: 

 Housing & Economy Priorities - Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Panel 

 Place Priority - Environment and Community Safety Scrutiny Panel 

 People (Children) Priority – Children and Young People Scrutiny 
Panel 

 People (Adults) Priority – Adult and Health Scrutiny Panel 

 Your Council Priority – Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

5.7 As an aide memoire to assist with the scrutiny of budget proposals, possible 
key lines of enquiry are attached at Appendix A. This report is specifically 
concerned with Stage 1 (planning and setting the budget) as a key part of the 
overall annual financial scrutiny activity.   

5.8 Appendix B is the Draft 2021/22 Budget & 2021/26 MTFS considered by 
Cabinet on 8th December 2020.    This report sets out details of the draft Budget 
for 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2021/26, including 
budget reductions, growth and capital proposals. This includes details of 
estimated funding for 2021/22 and the remainder of the planning period and 
highlights areas of risk. 

5.9 Appendix C provides details of the new revenue and capital budget proposals 
relevant to each Panel/Committee.  A summary is provided, followed by detailed 
information for each proposal.  Any invest to save revenue proposal dependent 
on capital or flexible use of capital receipts for successful delivery has been 
clearly identified in the summary.   

5.10 Appendix D lists the pre-agreed savings relevant to each Panel/Committee.       
This document provides additional context and background to enable a more 
robust scrutiny of the draft proposals.  Attention is also drawn to the 2020/21 

Page 17



 

Quarter 2 Finance Update Report presented to Cabinet on 8th December 2020 
which provides a summary of the in year budget implications facing the authority 
which has informed the 2021/22 Draft Budget proposals now presented.  The 
Council’s 2020/21 Budget Book provides details of service budgets for the 
current year. 

6.  Contribution to strategic outcomes  

6.1  The Budget Scrutiny process for 2021/22 will contribute to strategic outcomes 
relating to all Council priorities.   

7. Statutory Officers comments  

Finance  

7.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. Should any 
of the work undertaken by Overview and Scrutiny generate recommendations 
with financial implications then these will be highlighted at that time.  

Legal  

7.2 There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.  

7.3 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution (Part 4, Section G), the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee should undertake scrutiny of the Council’s budget 
through a Budget Scrutiny process. The procedure by which this operates is 
detailed in the Protocol, which is outside the Council’s constitution, covering the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

Equality  

7.4 The draft Borough Plan sets out the Council’s overarching commitment to 
tackling poverty and inequality and to working towards a fairer Borough.  

7.5 The Council is also bound by the Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality 
Act (2010) to have due regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Act 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those 
protected characteristics and people who do not 

 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics 
and people who do not.  

7.6 The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: 
age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, 
sex and sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the 
first part of the duty. 

7.7 The Council has designed the proposals in this report with reference to the aims 
of the Borough Plan to reduce poverty and inequality. The Council is committed 
to protecting frontline services wherever we can and the budget proposals have 
focused as far as possible on delivering efficiencies or increasing income, rather 
than reduction in services.  

7.8 As plans are developed further, each area will assess the equality impacts and 
potential mitigating actions in more detail. Final EQIAs will be published 
alongside decisions on specific proposals. 

Page 18



 

7.9 Any comments received will be taken into consideration and included in the 
Budget report presented to Cabinet on 9th February 2021. 

 

8. Use of Appendices  

Appendix A – Key lines of enquiry for budget setting  

Appendix B – 2021/22 Draft Budget &2021/26 Medium Term Financial 
Strategy Report (presented to Cabinet 8th December 2020) 

Appendix C – 2020 New Budget Proposals 

Appendix D - Pre-agreed savings  

 
9.  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 

Background papers: 2020/21 Quarter 2 Finance Update Report - Cabinet 8th 
December 2020 
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s11998
7/Q2%20Finance%20Update%20Report%20ver2.0%20
Cabinet%20FINAL.pdf 

 
 2020/21 Budget Book 

https://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/ha
ringey_2020-21_budget_book.pdf 
  

Page 19

https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s119987/Q2%20Finance%20Update%20Report%20ver2.0%20Cabinet%20FINAL.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s119987/Q2%20Finance%20Update%20Report%20ver2.0%20Cabinet%20FINAL.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s119987/Q2%20Finance%20Update%20Report%20ver2.0%20Cabinet%20FINAL.pdf
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/haringey_2020-21_budget_book.pdf
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/haringey_2020-21_budget_book.pdf


 

Appendix A 

 Financial Scrutiny: Understanding your Role in the Budget Process 

This document summarises issues and questions you should consider as part of your 
review of financial information. You might like to take it with you to your meetings and 
use it as an aide-memoir.  
 
Overall, is the MTFS and annual budget:  



 A financial representation of the council’s policy framework/ priorities? 

 Legal (your Section 151 Officer will specifically advise on this)? 

 Affordable and prudent? 
 
Stage 1 – planning and setting the budget  
 
Always seek to scrutinise financial information at a strategic level and try to avoid too 
much detail at this stage. For example, it is better to ask whether the proposed budget 
is sufficient to fund the level of service planned for the year rather than asking why £x 
has been cut from a service budget.  
 
Possible questions which Scrutiny members might consider –  

 Are the MTFS, capital programme and revenue budget financial representations 
of what the council is trying to achieve?  

 Does the MTFS and annual budget reflect the revenue effects of the proposed 
capital programme?  

 How does the annual budget relate to the MTFS?  

 What level of Council Tax is proposed? Is this acceptable in terms of national 
capping rules and local political acceptability?  

 Is there sufficient money in “balances” kept aside for unforeseen needs?  

 Are services providing value for money (VFM)? How is VFM measured and how 
does it relate to service quality and customer satisfaction?  

 Have fees and charges been reviewed, both in terms of fee levels and potential 
demand?  

 Does any proposed budget growth reflect the council’s priorities?  

 Does the budget contain anything that the council no longer needs to do?  

 Do service budgets reflect and adequately resource individual service plans?  

 Could the Council achieve similar outcomes more efficiently by doing things 
differently?  
 

Stage 2 – Monitoring the budget  
 
It is the role of “budget holders” to undertake detailed budget monitoring, and the 
Executive and individual Portfolio Holders will overview such detailed budget 
monitoring. Budget monitoring should never be carried out in isolation from service 
performance information. Scrutiny should assure itself that budget monitoring is being 
carried out but should avoid duplicating discussions and try to add value to the 
process. Possible questions which Scrutiny members might consider –  
 

Page 20



 

 What does the under/over spend mean in terms of service performance? 
What are the overall implications of not achieving performance targets?  

 What is the forecast under/over spend at the year end?  

 What plans have budget managers and/or the Portfolio Holder made to bring 
spending back on budget? Are these reasonable?  

 Does the under/over spend signal a need for a more detailed study into the 
service area?  

 
Stage 3 – Reviewing the budget  
 
At the end of the financial year you will receive an “outturn report”. Use this to look 
back and think about what lessons can be learned. Then try to apply these lessons to 
discussions about future budgets. Possible questions which Scrutiny members might 
consider –  
 

 Did services achieve what they set out to achieve in terms of both 
performance and financial targets?  

 What were public satisfaction levels and how do these compare with budgets 
and spending?  

 Did the income and expenditure profile match the plan, and, if not, what 
conclusions can be drawn?  

 What are the implications of over or under achievement for the MTFS?  

 Have all planned savings been achieved, and is the impact on service 
performance as expected?  

 Have all growth bids achieved the planned increases in service performance?  

 If not, did anything unusual occur which would mitigate any conclusions 
drawn?  

 How well did the first two scrutiny stages work, were they useful and how 
could they be improved? 

 
 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

2021-22 Budget and 2021-2026 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 
 

 

 

Page 23



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 31



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2024/25

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue Support Grant 21,993         22,169       22,502       22,952       23,411       23,645         
Business Rates Top Up 58,412         58,880       62,305       63,524       64,743       65,391         
Retained Business Rates 22,100         20,642       21,656       22,080       22,504       22,729         
NNDR Surplus/(Deficit) (1,654)          (900)           (900)           (900)           0                  0                   
S31 Grants 6,019            6,675         -              -              -              -               
Share of Pool Growth 400               -              -              -              -              -               
Total 107,270       107,467     105,563     107,656     110,658     111,765      

Business Rates Related income 
Forecast

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 37



 

 
 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Taxbase before collection rate 80,067 81,392 82,206 83,028 83,858 84,697

Taxbase change 1.7% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%

Taxbase for year  81,392 82,206 83,028 83,858 84,697 85,544

Collection Rate 96.50% 95.50% 95.50% 96.00% 96.50% 96.50%

Taxbase after collection rate 78,543 78,507 79,292 80,504 81,732 82,550

Council Tax increase 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%

Social Care precept 2.00% 3.00% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Band D rate £1,372.55 £1,441.04 £1,469.72 £1,498.97 £1,528.80 £1,559.22

Council Tax Before Surplus (£000) £107,805 £113,131 £116,537 £120,673 £124,952 £128,713

Previous Year (Estimated) Surplus £2,175 £1,675 £1,675 £1,675 £2,175 £2,175

CIPFA Counter Fraud Income £0 £25 £25 £25 £25 £25

Council Tax Yield (£000) £109,980 £114,831 £118,237 £122,373 £127,152 £130,913

COUNCIL TAX ASSUMPTIONS

 

 

 

Page 38



2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Better Care Fund (BCF) - (CCG 
Contribution) 6,017 6,047 6,077 6,108 6,108 6,108
Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) 9,518 9,566 9,613 9,661 9,661 9,661
Social Care Support Grant 6,960 6,995 7,030 7,065 7,065 7,065

Additional Social Care Funding * 0 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250

Total 22,495 23,857 23,971 24,084 24,084 24,084

* Announced at SR20. Estimated amount based on previous allocations, actual amount to be confirmed

Grant Name

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Council Tax Support Grant 457               457             457             457             457             457               
Housing Benefit Admin Grant 1,491            1,491         1,491         1,491         1,491         1,491           
Public Health Grant 20,228         20,228       20,228       20,228       20,228       20,228         
New Homes Bonus 2,199            2,089         0-                  0                  0                  0                   
Business Rates - Section 31 Grants 6,019            6,678         -              -              -              -               
Total 30,393         30,942       22,175       22,176       22,176       22,176         

Grant Name

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue Support Grant 21,993         22,169       22,502       22,952       23,411       23,645         
Top up Business Rates 58,412         58,880       62,305       63,524       64,743       65,391         
Retained Business Rates 22,100         20,642       21,656       22,080       22,504       22,729         
NNDR Growth 400               -              -              -              -              -               
NNDR Surplus/(Deficit) (1,654)          (900)           (900)           (900)           0                  0                   
Council Tax 107,805       113,132     116,536     120,673     124,952     128,713      
Council Tax Surplus 2,175            1,700         1,675         1,675         2,175         2,175           
New Homes Bonus 2,199            2,089         0-                  0                  0                  0                   
Public Health 20,228 20,228       20,228 20,228 20,228 20,228
Other Core Grants 8,634            8,626         1,951         1,951         1,951         1,951           
Total (External) Funding          242,292       246,566       245,953       252,183       259,964         264,832 

Contribution from Reserves -                5,440         -              -              -              -               

T
a

b
le

 
6

.2

T
a

b
le

s
 

6
.3

 a
n

d
 

6
.4

T
a

b
le

 6
.1

Source of Funding

Page 41



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 44



 

 

 

 

 

 

Priority 2021/22
£'000

2022/23
£'000

2023/24
£'000

2024/25
£'000

2025/26
£'000

 Total 
£'000

People - Adults 2,300 0 0 0 0 2,300
People - Children's 3,046 (459) (264) 0 0 2,323
Your Council 367 66 (300) 0 0 133
Place 2,721 (355) 0 0 0 2,366
Economy 175 0 0 0 0 175
Total 8,609 (748) (564) 0 0 7,297  

 

 

 

 

Page 45



 

 

Delayed 
Savings

Undeliverable 
Savings

Delayed 
Savings

Undeliverable 
Savings

Delayed 
Savings

Undeliverable 
Savings

Delayed 
Savings

Undeliverable 
Savings

Delayed 
Savings

Undeliverable 
Savings

Delayed 
Savings

Undeliverable 
Savings

 Adults 1,621 0 (710) 0 (911) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 Children 1,066 390 (1,066) 125 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 515

 Place 0 200 0 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 250
 Economy 120 100 30 0 20 0 (100) 0 (70) 0 0 100
 Housing (136) 0 (136) 0 136 0 136 0 0 0 0 0

Your Council 252 318 (252) 250 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 568
Total 2,923 1,008 (2,134) 425 (755) 0 36 0 (70) 0 0 1,433

Priority

Total

£'000£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

 

 

 

 

Page 46



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 Total Proposals

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Housing 483 68 51 12 1 615
People - Adults 1,537 0 0 0 0 1,537
People - Children 321 319 30 30 0 700
Place 2,361 1,575 (1,380) 1,300 160 4,016
Economy 550 0 0 0 0 250
Your Council 846 138 0 0 0 984
Subtotal 6,098 2,100 (1,299) 1,342 161 8,102
Cross-Cutting Proposals 750 2,250 0 0 0 3,000
Total 6,848 4,350 (1,299) 1,342 161 11,102

Priority

 

 

 

Page 48



 

 

 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Budget Draft 

Budget
Projected Projected Projected Projected

Priority Area £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Housing 16,382 16,102 15,762 15,711 15,699 15,698
People - Children 55,189 58,721 57,083 57,189 57,459 57,459
People - Adults 83,784 83,375 80,827 82,977 86,079 86,079
Place 24,915 22,372 19,255 20,571 19,277 19,117
Economy 1,006 7,642 7,542 7,442 7,342 7,272
Your Council 35,999 32,893 30,063 29,757 29,757 29,757
Non-Service Revenue 25,017 30,902 45,487 56,687 62,953 66,153
Council Cash Limit 242,292 252,006 256,019 270,333 278,565 281,534
Planned Contributions from 
Reserves -                (5,440)        -              -              -              -               
Further Savings to be Identified -                     -                  (10,041)     (18,125)     (18,576)     (16,677)       
Total General Fund Budget 242,292 246,566 245,978 252,208 259,989 264,857
Council Tax 107,805 113,132 116,536 120,673 124,952 128,713
Council Tax Surplus 2,175 1,700 1,700 1,700 2,200 2,200
RSG 21,993 22,169 22,502 22,952 23,411 23,645
Top up Business Rates 58,412 58,880 62,305 63,524 64,743 65,391
Retained Business Rates 22,100 20,642 21,656 22,080 22,504 22,729
NNDR Surplus/(Deficit) (1,654)          (900)           (900)           (900)           0                  0                   
NNDR Growth 400 -              -              -              -              -               
Total (Main Funding) 211,231      215,623    223,799    230,029    237,810    242,678     

Core/Other External Grants

New Homes Bonus 2,199 2,089 0 0 0 0
Public Health 20,228 20,228 20,228 20,228 20,228 20,228
Other core grants 8,634         8,626        1,951        1,951        1,951        1,951         

TOTAL (Core/Other External Grants) 31,061        30,943      22,178      22,179      22,179      22,179       

Total Income 242,292      246,566    245,978    252,208    259,989    264,857      

Page 49



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



Table 8.1: Capital expenditure plans overview 2021/22 - 2025/26 
   

  
2020/21 
Budget 

2021/22 
Budget 

2022/23 
Budget 

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Budget 

2025/26 
Budget 

Total 

  (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) 
Previously 
Agreed 

              

General 
Fund 
Account 
(GF)  

217,762 213,535 170,420 139,435 96,888   838,040 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 
(HRA)  

236,331 214,146 204,392 165,200 194,501   1,014,570 

Total = 454,093 427,681 374,812 304,635 291,389   1,852,610 

Proposed               

General 
Fund 
Account 
(GF)  

  287,504 188,713 150,613 120,687 62,869 810,385 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 
(HRA)  

  246,071 307,941 303,515 198,722 159,846 1,216,095 

Total =   533,575 496,654 454,128 319,409 222,715 2,026,480 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 
Table 8.2: Capital expenditure plans by priority 

  
2021/22 
Budget 

2022/23 
Budget 

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Budget 

2025/26 
Budget 

Total 

(£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) 

People - 
Children's 

26,471 23,909 24,006 20,101 10,731 105,218 

People - 
Adults 

26,220 26,970 12,400 4,470 2,377 72,437 

Place 25,809 13,382 13,360 11,495 10,795 74,841 

Economy  177,498 105,171 84,316 66,971 32,316 466,271 

Housing 
(GF)  

6,000 1,000 1,000 0 0 8,000 

Your 
Council 

25,506 18,281 15,531 17,650 6,650 83,618 

Total 
General 
Fund (GF) 

287,504 188,713 150,613 120,687 62,869 810,385 

         

Housing 
(HRA) 

246,071 307,941 303,515 198,722 159,846 1,216,095 

         

Overall 
Total 

533,575 496,654 454,128 319,409 222,715 2,026,480 

 

 

Page 56



Page 57



 

 

 

 

Page 58



 

  

General Fund 
Borrowing 

External Total Met from 
General 

Fund 

Self 
Financing 
met from 
Savings 

(£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) 

People - Children's 77,259 0 27,959 105,218 

People - Adults 3,785 54,170 14,482 72,437 

Place 55,863 4,400 14,578 74,841 

Economy  73,225 143,916 249,131 466,272 

Housing - GF 0 8,000 0 8,000 

Your Council 52,863 30,755 0 83,618 

       

Total 262,994 241,241 306,150 810,385 

 

 

Page 59



Page 60



  
2020/21 
Budget 

2021/22 
Budget 

2022/23 
Budget 

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Budget 

2025/26 
Budget 

(£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) 

MRP 5,533 8,734 16,438 22,455 25,807 29,043 

  
2020/21 
Budget 

2021/22 
Budget 

2022/23 
Budget 

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Budget 

2025/26 
Budget 

(£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) 

CFR 1,073,041 1,300,885 1,590,485 1,836,902 1,999,393 2,016,930 

Page 61



  

31/3/20 
Actual 

31/3/21 
Budget 

31/3/22 
Budget 

31/3/23 
Budget 

31/3/24 
Budget 

31/3/25 
Budget 

31/3/26 
Budget 

(£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) 

Borrowing 
Debt 531,693 811,902 1,076,962 1,370,737 1,621,512 1,786,520 1,804,057 

PFI & Lease 
Debt 31,800 27,932 24,099 20,100 15,926 11,567 9,050 

Total Debt 563,493 839,834 1,101,061 1,390,837 1,637,438 1,798,088 1,813,108 

Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 

723,447 1,073,041 1,300,885 1,590,485 1,836,902 1,999,393 2,016,930 

Page 62



  

2020/21 
limit 

2021/22 
limit 

2022/23 
limit 

2023/24 
limit 

2024/25 
limit 

2025/26 
limit 

(£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) 

Authorised 
limit – 
borrowing 

979,646 1,206,785 1,500,385 1,750,976 1,917,826 1,937,880 

Authorised 
limit – PFI & 
leases 

30,882 31,811 26,532 21,022 15,269 11,946 

Authorised 
limit – total 
external 
debt 

1,010,528 1,238,596 1,526,917 1,771,998 1,933,095 1,949,826 

Operational 
boundary - 
borrowing 

929,646 1,156,785 1,450,385 1,700,976 1,867,826 1,887,880 

Operational 
boundary – 
PFI & 
leases 

28,075 28,919 24,120 19,111 13,881 10,860 

Operational 
boundary – 
total 
external 
debt 

957,720 1,185,704 1,474,505 1,720,087 1,881,707 1,898,740 

  

2020/21 
Budget 

2021/22 
Budget 

2022/23 
Budget 

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Budget 

2025/26 
Budget 

(£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) 

Financing 
Costs 
General 
Fund  

9,343 12,653 16,677 20,076 22,343 27,299 

Proportion 
of net 
revenue 
stream 

3.87% 5.16% 6.65% 7.82% 8.51% 10.40% 

Financing 
Costs 
HRA 

16,426 18,591 23,287 28,823 33,001 35,825 

Proportion 
of net 
revenue 
stream 

15.44% 17.08% 20.60% 24.37% 26.39% 27.44% 

Page 63



Page 64



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



 

 

Page 67



 

 

 

 

 

Page 68



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 69



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 70



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71



 
Table 9.3 - Draft 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Total
Income & Expenditure 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 5 Years

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income
Dwellings Rent Income (85,647) (89,630) (95,213) (102,374) (108,166) (481,030)
Void Loss 856 896 952 1,024 1,082 4,810
Hostel Rent Income (2,263) (2,292) (2,331) (2,371) (2,412) (11,669)
Service Charge Income (11,539) (11,808) (12,237) (12,801) (13,363) (61,748)
Leaseholder Income (7,374) (7,475) (7,614) (7,756) (7,978) (38,197)
Other Income (Garages /Aerials/Interest) (2,255) (2,266) (2,289) (2,312) (2,358) (11,480)
Total Income (108,222) (112,575) (118,732) (126,590) (133,195) (599,314)

Expenditure
Repairs 19,410 19,507 19,702 20,610 21,515 100,744
Housing Management 19,861 19,960 20,160 20,362 21,256 101,599
Housing Demand 1,879 1,888 1,907 1,926 1,965 9,565
Management Fee (HfH) 41,150 41,355 41,769 42,898 44,736 211,908
Further Cost Reduction Measures in year 2 & 3 0 (1,150) (1,450) 0 0 (2,600)
Estates Costs (Managed) 10,219 10,270 10,373 10,851 11,328 53,041
Provision for Bad Debts (Tenants) 2,625 1,948 1,220 927 956 7,676
Provision for Bad Debts (Leaseholders) 88 90 91 93 96 458
Total Managed Expenditure 12,932 12,308 11,684 11,871 12,380 61,175
Other Costs (GF Services) 4,357 4,379 4,423 4,467 4,556 22,182
Other Costs (Property/Insurance) 2,224 2,235 2,257 2,280 2,326 11,322
Capital Financing Costs 19,285 25,096 31,463 35,884 37,875 149,603
Contribution to Major Repairs (Depreciation) 20,197 20,298 20,501 20,706 21,120 102,822
Revenue Contributions to Capital 8,077 8,054 8,085 8,484 10,202 42,902
Total Expenditure 108,222 112,575 118,732 126,590 133,195 599,314
HRA (Surplus) / Deficit                      0 0 0 0 0 0  

 

 

 

Page 72



Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Total
Investment & Financing 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 5 Years

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Capital Investment
Existing Stock Investment (Haringey Standard) 65,278 56,835 69,868 53,412 25,348 270,741
New Homes Build Programme 70,080 174,669 154,594 48,319 23,156 470,818
New Homes Acquisitions 41,760 6,337 15,405 27,705 44,202 135,409
TA Acquisitions 33,877 34,216 34,558 34,904 35,951 173,506
New Homes Zero Carbon 76 151 605 1,183 140 2,155
Existing Stock Carbon Reduction (Affordable Energy) 5,142 5,142 6,285 17,597 17,597 51,763
Fire Safety 15,329 13,771 11,000 4,400 4,500 49,000
Broadwater Farm 14,529 16,820 11,200 11,202 8,952 62,703
Total Capital Investment 246,071 307,941 303,515 198,722 159,846 1,216,095

Capital Investment Financing
Grants (GLA Allocation) 35,124 1,204 0 0 0 36,328
Grants (Additional Bid) 0 26,896 55,524 22,510 7,600 112,530
Major Repairs Reserves 20,197 20,298 20,501 20,706 21,120 102,822
Revenue Contributions 8,077 8,054 8,085 8,484 10,202 42,902
RTB Capital Receipts 10,163 10,265 10,367 10,088 10,655 51,538
Leaseholder Contributions to Major Works 10,134 9,883 9,746 8,139 7,256 45,158
S.106 Contributions 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 0 3,000
Market Sales Receipts (at cost) 1,898 0 1,661 23,362 57,104 84,025
Market Sales Contributions 360 0 332 4,672 11,421 16,785
Borrowing 159,118 230,341 196,299 100,761 34,488 721,007
Total Capital Financing 246,071 307,941 303,515 198,722 159,846 1,216,095

Page 73



 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 74



 

 

 

Blocks 
Opening DSG at 

01/04/2020 
P06 Forecast 

Outturn Variance 

Forecast Closing  
DSG Reserves Quarter 2 

 2020-21 
Schools Block 0 0 0 
Central Block 10,260 34 10,294 
Early Years Block 107,530 48,857 156,387 
High Needs Block 10,066,960 5,255,940 15,322,900 
Total  £ 10,184,750   £ 5,304,830   £ 15,489,580  

 
 

Page 75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 76



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77



 

 

 

 

Page 78



 

 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



15 December 2020 - Housing and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Panel
New Savings Proposals 2021/22 - 2025/26

REF Priority Description
 2021/22

£000 
 2022/23

£000 
 2023/24

£000 
 2024/25

£000 
 2025/26

£000 

 Savings 
Total -  
(£'000) 

Capital 
Investment 

-  (£'000)

HO101 Housing Housing Team Salaries - increase HRA contribution 274           -            -            -            -            274           -            
HO102 Housing HfH taking over the lease of PSL properties on their expiry 209           68             51             12             1               341           -            

TOTAL - Housing 483           68             51             12             1               615           -            
EC101 Economy Additional Recharge to Housing Services            300                -                  -                  -                  -              300                -   
EC102 Economy Additional Planning income from introducing new charges            200                -                  -                  -                  -              200                -   
EC103 Economy Reduction in Energy Consumption on corporate buildings               50                -                  -                  -                  -                 50               50 

TOTAL - Economy            550                -                  -                  -                  -              250               50 

P
age 81



Financial Benefits Summary

2021/22
£000s

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

2025/26
£000s

Total 
£000s

274              -               -               -               -               274              

Description of Option:
 •What is the proposal in essence? What is its scope? What will change? 
 •What will be the impact on the Council’s objecƟves and outcomes (please refer to relevant Borough Plan 2019-23 objecƟves and 

outcomes, and Borough Plan Evidence Packs) 
 •How will the proposal deliver the benefits outlined? 

[Proposals will be mapped to the any new Borough Plan Priorities/Objectives/Outcomes as they emerge – please take account of any 
likely changes when framing proposals]

Currently the Housing Strategy & Commissioning team are part funded from the GF and part from the HRA. Due to more of the 
projects now being funded by the HRA there is scope to transfer more salary costs to the HRA too. The process for doing this has 
been fully reviewed with the relevant management accountant and finance business partner and the amount that can be released has 
been confirmed as 274k.

Please provide indicative financial benefits information, including any initial investment costs below.  Where figures are speculative 
and require further detailed work to refine these, please indicate this in the text box below.

Revenue Impacts
All figures shown on an incremental 
basis

New net additional savings

Priority: Housing Responsible Officer: Robbie Erbmann

Affected Service(s) 
and AD:

Housing, Robbie Erbmann Contact / Lead: Housing Programme Manager

Business Planning / MTFS Options HO101
2021/22 – 2025/26

Please fill this pro forma out fully. It is important that options brought forward from Stage 1 are worked up into fuller, more robust 
proposals that are fit for progression to the formal decision-making process. 

Title of Option: Housing Team Salaries - increase HRA contribution

Page 82



2021/22
£000s

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

2025/26
£000s

Total 
£000s

-               -               -               -               -               -               

Delivery Confidence – Stage 1

Indicative timescale for implementation

01/04/2021 01/04/2021

Is there an opportunity for implementation 
before April 2021? Y/N ; any constraints? 

N

Total 

Financial Implications Outline
 •How have the savings above been determined? Please provide a brief breakdown of the factors considered.
 •Is any addiƟonal investment required in order to deliver the proposal?
 •If relevant, how will addiƟonal income be generated and how has the amounts been determined?
 •Please describe the nature of one off implementaƟon costs (if applicable)

The savings have been determined by assessing the percentage of team members time spent on HRA funded activities vs General 
Fund funded activities. As the Housing Delivery Team and TA acquisitions programme are now fully HRA funded any work related to 
these can also be charged to the HRA.  The only remaining General Fund activity is monitoring of and support to the HfH Housing 
Demand service (TA related) which only requires a smaller percentage of a few team members time. The payroll will be adjusted to 
reflect the change.

At this stage, how confident are you that this 
option could be delivered and benefits 
realised as set out?  
(1 = not at all confident; 
5 = very confident)

5

Est. start date for consultation  DD/MM/YY Est. completion date for implementation  DD/MM/YY

Initial One-Off Investment Costs

Page 83



Impact / non-financial benefits and disbenefits

n/a - this change is internal only and will have no impact on residents

Negative Impacts
n/a - this change is internal only and will have no impact on residents

Implementation Details
 •How will the proposal be implemented? Are any addiƟonal resources required?
 •Please provide a brief Ɵmeline of the implementaƟon phase.
 •How will a successful implementaƟon be measured? Which performance indicators are most relevant?

The salary budgets can be reduced prior to the start of the new financial year.

What is the likely impact on customers and how will negative impacts be mitigated or managed?
List both positive and negative impacts. Where possible link these to outcomes (please refer to relevant Borough Plan 2019-23 
objectives and outcomes)

Positive Impacts

Page 84



Negative Impacts
n/a - this change is internal only and will have no impact on businesses, members etc

How does this option ensure the Council is able to meet statutory requirements?

n/a - this has no impact on the ability to meet statutory requirements. Support to and monitoring of Housing Demand services can 
still take place. 

What is the impact on businesses, members, staff, partners and other stakeholders and how will this be mitigated or managed? How 
has this been discussed / agreed with other parties affected?
List both positive and negative impacts.

Positive Impacts
n/a - this change is internal only and will have no impact on businesses, members etc

Page 85



Risks and Mitigation
 What are the main risks associated with this opƟon and how could they be miƟgated?(Add rows if required)

Impact 
(H/M/L)

Probability 
(H/M/L)

Signature: 
Date:

Signature: 
Date:

[name]

Director / AD [Comments]

[name]

Finance Business Partner [Comments]

Has the EqIA Screening Tool been completed for this proposal? 
The Screening Tool should be completed for all Options at Stage 1.

n/a

EqIA Screening Tool
Is a full EqIA required? 
Full EqIAs to be undertaken at Stage 2

n/a

Reviewed by

None
Risk Mitigation

Page 86



Financial Benefits Summary

2021/22
£000s

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

2025/26
£000s

Total 
£000s

-209 -68 -51 -12 -1 -341

Description of Option:
 •What is the proposal in essence? What is its scope? What will change? 
 •What will be the impact on the Council’s objecƟves and outcomes (please refer to relevant Borough Plan 2019-23 objecƟves and 

outcomes, and Borough Plan Evidence Packs) 
 •How will the proposal deliver the benefits outlined? 

[Proposals will be mapped to the any new Borough Plan Priorities/Objectives/Outcomes as they emerge – please take account of any 
likely changes when framing proposals]

The proposed MTFS Savings is in addition to the already agreed savings submited last year and which have subsequently been 
reprofiled. The savings represent a reduction in cost over the 5 years as result of HfH taking on existing leases as they expire, enabling 
rents to be increased to LHA. 

The MTFS 20-21 includes an existing saving to be achieved by HfH taking up the next lease of the Council's current PSL stock when the 
current lease with the Council expires. As tenants of HfH will be able to claim higher rates of Housing Benefit than those with the 
Council, HfH can charge higher rents without impacting the tenants. The higher Housing Benefit will also significantly reduced the 
current shortfalls in Housing Benefit which the Council currently meets with an internal transfer. 
This was originally forecast to make 612k of savings between 2020-21 and 2024-25.
As the scoping of the project has progressed it has become clear that the eventual savings could be increased overall, and more 
brought forward into 2021-22 but at the expense of additional staff for 18 months.
Full details of this submission are provided showing the change in profile to bring the savings forward.

Please provide indicative financial benefits information, including any initial investment costs below.  Where figures are speculative 
and require further detailed work to refine these, please indicate this in the text box below.

Revenue Impacts
All figures shown on an incremental 
basis

New net additional savings

Priority: Housing Responsible Officer: Robbie Erbmann

Affected Service(s) 
and AD:

HfH Housing Demand Contact / Lead: Housing Programme Manager

Business Planning / MTFS Options HO102
2021/22 – 2025/26

Please fill this pro forma out fully. It is important that options brought forward from Stage 1 are worked up into fuller, more robust 
proposals that are fit for progression to the formal decision-making process. 

Title of Option: HfH taking over the lease of PSL properties on their expiry

Page 87



2021/22
£000s

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

2025/26
£000s

Total 
£000s

-               -               -               -               -               -               

Delivery Confidence – Stage 1

Indicative timescale for implementation

Is there an opportunity for implementation 
before April 2021? Y/N ; any constraints? 

Yes, implementation of the project is scheduled to begin in October 2020 but additional 
staffing is required in the first 18 months to sign up landlords with HfH which means 
that savings might start until 2021/22.

Total 

Financial Implications Outline
 •How have the savings above been determined? Please provide a brief breakdown of the factors considered.
 •Is any addiƟonal investment required in order to deliver the proposal?
 •If relevant, how will addiƟonal income be generated and how has the amounts been determined?
 •Please describe the nature of one off implementaƟon costs (if applicable)

The savings originally submitted have been reviewed by the PSL Project Manager and an increased level of savings proposed. In order 
to deliver the savings quickly additional resources will be required in Year 1 & 2 in order to facilitate landlords and tenants signing up 
to new leases with HfH so their is an additional staffing cost.

The saving(s) already included in MTFS 2018/23 shown in line E on the Financial Benefits Detail have been reprofiled from the original 
submission.

At this stage, how confident are you that this 
option could be delivered and benefits 
realised as set out?  
(1 = not at all confident; 
5 = very confident)

4 - there are significant risks in ensuring that the additional capacity in the HfH team is 
recruited in a timely manner and that tenants and landlords are willing to sign up to 
new tenancies with HfH. There is no impact to tenants in terms of rent paid by them, 
but it is possible that they have concerns which may take time to allay. 

Est. start date for consultation  DD/MM/YY Est. completion date for implementation  DD/MM/YY

Initial One-Off Investment Costs

Page 88



Impact / non-financial benefits and disbenefits

N/A

Negative Impacts
There is the possibility that some tenants will be concerned about signing a lease at a higher rent level with HfH instead of the 
council. This will be mitigated by effective communication with relevant tenants at all stages. Rent increases will be met from 
increased benefits and will have no effect on tenants themselves. 

Implementation Details
 •How will the proposal be implemented? Are any addiƟonal resources required?
 •Please provide a brief Ɵmeline of the implementaƟon phase.
 •How will a successful implementaƟon be measured? Which performance indicators are most relevant?

A detailed PID has been produced which outlines the project team, implementation process, timeline and key milestones. The project 
scoping is now completed and the project is in Phase 2 Recruitment of additional staff. Pending recruitment being successful and new 
starters being in place the delivery stage of the project should start in October 2020. The delivery of the project will be measured by 
the number of new leases completed within required timescales. A project team is in place, and a project board will be set up, 
reporting progress to Housing Priority Delivery Board. 

What is the likely impact on customers and how will negative impacts be mitigated or managed?
List both positive and negative impacts. Where possible link these to outcomes (please refer to relevant Borough Plan 2019-23 
objectives and outcomes)

Positive Impacts

Page 89



Negative Impacts
N/A

How does this option ensure the Council is able to meet statutory requirements?

This proposal, of itself, neither prevents nor enhances the Council's ability to meet its statutory responsibilities

What is the impact on businesses, members, staff, partners and other stakeholders and how will this be mitigated or managed? How 
has this been discussed / agreed with other parties affected?
List both positive and negative impacts.

Positive Impacts
This may increase the income/incentives received by some partner landlords who rent properties to homeless households 

Page 90



Risks and Mitigation
 What are the main risks associated with this opƟon and how could they be miƟgated?(Add rows if required)

Impact 
(H/M/L)

Probability 
(H/M/L)

H M

M L
M M

Signature: 
Date:

Signature: 
Date:

[name]

Director / AD [Comments]

[name]

Finance Business Partner [Comments]

Has the EqIA Screening Tool been completed for this proposal? 
The Screening Tool should be completed for all Options at Stage 1.

Yes

EqIA Screening Tool
Is a full EqIA required? 
Full EqIAs to be undertaken at Stage 2

No

Reviewed by

HfH teams do not set up the required number of 
leases within the required timescales

close monitoring of the project delivery, additional staff 
being brought in. Recruitment is already underway.

Tenants refuse to transfer indepth communications
Landlords refuse to transfer Incentives could be introduced/increased

Risk Mitigation

Page 91



Financial Benefits Summary

2021/22
£000s

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

2025/26
£000s

Total 
£000s

300-              -               -               -               -               300              

Description of Option:
 •What is the proposal in essence? What is its scope? What will change? 
 •What will be the impact on the Council’s objecƟves and outcomes (please refer to relevant Borough Plan 2019-23 objecƟves and 

outcomes, and Borough Plan Evidence Packs) 
 •How will the proposal deliver the benefits outlined? 

[Proposals will be mapped to the any new Borough Plan Priorities/Objectives/Outcomes as they emerge – please take account of any 
likely changes when framing proposals]

Property is one of the Council’s major resources - a major cost to the Council, a major source of income and a major component in strategies for 
service delivery and economic growth.  Property changes including changes in use, increasing in costs, investments or release of property are often 
the consequence of service or policy based changes.  A number of these have been successful invest to save propositions, and others are based 
service improvement ambitions as the main driver with property costs or opportunity costs being ancillary.  

In current circumstances, it is necessary to focus more sharply on the potential for the Council’s property assets to either increase revenue or 
produce revenue savings or to rationalise assets to produce capital receipts and reduce operating costs.  To achieve this will require corporate 
oversight of property related decision to be stronger than it is now.

Savings from property and property rationalisation can rarely be produced quickly, and workships are taking place over the next few months to 
streamline and rationalise the property portfolio across the council.  However in the meantime some early savings have potentially been identified 
by charging costs to the HRA for work undertaken by the Property Team in relation to delivering the Council Housing Delivery Programme.  This is 
will not cover all the costs of the development team /AMP work associated with property work but this will be looked at further as part of the 
property rationalisation work.  

Please provide indicative financial benefits information, including any initial investment costs below.  Where figures are speculative 
and require further detailed work to refine these, please indicate this in the text box below.

Revenue Impacts
All figures shown on an incremental 
basis

New net additional savings

Priority: Economy Responsible Officer: David Joyce

Affected Service(s) 
and AD:

Corporate Contact / Lead: Christine Addison 

Business Planning / MTFS Options EC101
2021/22 – 2025/26

Please fill this pro forma out fully. It is important that options brought forward from Stage 1 are worked up into fuller, more robust 
proposals that are fit for progression to the formal decision-making process. 

Title of Option: Property Review and Rationalisation - Recharging Property work

Page 92



2021/22
£000s

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

2025/26
£000s

Total 
£000s

-               -               -               -               -               -               

Delivery Confidence – Stage 1

Indicative timescale for implementation

N/A 01/04/2021

Is there an opportunity for implementation 
before April 2021? Y/N ; any constraints? 

N 

Total 

Financial Implications Outline
 •How have the savings above been determined? Please provide a brief breakdown of the factors considered.
 •Is any addiƟonal investment required in order to deliver the proposal?
 •If relevant, how will addiƟonal income be generated and how has the amounts been determined?
 •Please describe the nature of one off implementaƟon costs (if applicable)

Has been confirmed that the HRA will be recharged for these costs.

At this stage, how confident are you that this 
option could be delivered and benefits 
realised as set out?  
(1 = not at all confident; 
5 = very confident)

4

Est. start date for consultation  DD/MM/YY Est. completion date for implementation  DD/MM/YY

Initial One-Off Investment Costs

Page 93



Impact / non-financial benefits and disbenefits

NO impact as there will be no change to services.  This is a recharge of budgets

Negative Impacts
NO impact as there will be no change to services.  This is a recharge of budgets

Implementation Details
 •How will the proposal be implemented? Are any addiƟonal resources required?
 •Please provide a brief Ɵmeline of the implementaƟon phase.
 •How will a successful implementaƟon be measured? Which performance indicators are most relevant?

The costs will be recharged as part of finance processes.

What is the likely impact on customers and how will negative impacts be mitigated or managed?
List both positive and negative impacts. Where possible link these to outcomes (please refer to relevant Borough Plan 2019-23 
objectives and outcomes)

Positive Impacts

Page 94



Negative Impacts
NO impact as there will be no change to services.  This is a recharge of budgets

How does this option ensure the Council is able to meet statutory requirements?

N/A

What is the impact on businesses, members, staff, partners and other stakeholders and how will this be mitigated or managed? How 
has this been discussed / agreed with other parties affected?
List both positive and negative impacts.

Positive Impacts
NO impact as there will be no change to services.  This is a recharge of budgets

Page 95



Risks and Mitigation
 What are the main risks associated with this opƟon and how could they be miƟgated?(Add rows if required)

Impact (H/M/L)
Probability 

(H/M/L)

Signature: 
Date:

Signature: 
Date:

[name]

Director / AD [Comments]

[name]

Finance Business Partner [Comments]

Has the EqIA Screening Tool been completed for this proposal? 
The Screening Tool should be completed for all Options at Stage 1.

Yes

EqIA Screening Tool
Is a full EqIA required? 
Full EqIAs to be undertaken at Stage 2

No

Reviewed by

None
Risk Mitigation

Page 96



Description of Option:
 •What is the proposal in essence? What is its scope? What will change? 
 •What will be the impact on the Council’s objecƟves and outcomes (please refer to relevant Borough Plan 2019-23 objecƟves and 

outcomes, and Borough Plan Evidence Packs) 
 •How will the proposal deliver the benefits outlined? 

[Proposals will be mapped to the any new Borough Plan Priorities/Objectives/Outcomes as they emerge – please take account of any 
likely changes when framing proposals]

Raising our Pre-application service fees to be in line with the upper quartile of comparable London broughs.  Haringey's Fees and 
charges schedule for discretionary pre-app service was last updated in 2019, however both service standards and costs have risen.  
This rise will achieve an increase in income.  We are also proposing to revise our processes to ensure that all officer time is 
chargeable including Carbon team input, Conservation & Design etc. These officers are currently not charged for. Additional fees for 
an 'express written advice service' for residents and 'express' services for assessing lawful development certificates and planning 
applications are also proposed.

Housing
Relevant extracts from the Borough Plan:
Outcome 1) We will work together to deliver the new homes Haringey needs, especially new affordable homes
    Objective a) Deliver as many new, good quality homes of all kinds as we can, in good quality neighbourhoods, getting as close as possible to the Mayor of London's emerging target for 
Haringey of 1,502 [sic 1,958] homes every year
        Action: Deliver estate renewal where estate ballots show clear resident support for the proposals
    Objective b) Ensure new developments provide affordable homes with the right mix of tenures to meet the wide range of needs across the borough, prioritising new social rented 
homes
        Action: Prioritise social rented homes in particular
        Action: Provide more affordable intermediate homes like those at London Living Rent
        Action: Develop a revised Housing Strategy setting out our approach to delivering the right mix of affordable homes, including by reviewing what we mean by 'affordability'
    Objective c) Deliver 1,000 new council homes at council rents by 2022
        Action: Secure homes on privately owned land through the Planning system (under Section 106)
    Objective d) Secure the delivery of supported housing that meets the needs of older, disabled and vulnerable people in the borough
        Action: Improve the use of Planning agreements (Section 106) to bring in specialist and extra care housing in mixed developments

People
Planning helps to spatially coordinate investment in education and health infrastructure as part of nurturing strong communities.

Priority: Economy Responsible Officer:
David Joyce, Director of Housing, 
Regeneration and Planning

Affected Service(s) 
and AD:

Rob Krzyszowski, Interim AD for 
Planning, Building Standards & 
Sustainability

Contact / Lead:
Rob Krzyszowski, Interim AD for Planning, 
Building Standards & Sustainability

Business Planning / MTFS Options EC102
2021/22 – 2025/26

Please fill this pro forma out fully. It is important that options brought forward from Stage 1 are worked up into fuller, more robust 
proposals that are fit for progression to the formal decision-making process. 

Title of Option: PBSS _ Maximising income 

Page 97



Financial Benefits Summary

2021/22
£000s

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

2025/26
£000s

Total 
£000s

Please provide indicative financial benefits information, including any initial investment costs below.  Where figures are speculative 
and require further detailed work to refine these, please indicate this in the text box below.

Revenue Impacts
All figures shown on an incremental 
basis

Place
Relevant extracts from the Borough Plan:
Outcome 9) A healthier, active and greener place
    Objective a) Protect and improve parks, open space, and green space, promoting community use
    Objective b) Increase the levels of physical activity across the borough
        Action:  Create healthier places, including parks and open spaces, in line with the Mayor of London’s Healthy Streets plan, to support people to be active by cycling, walking, playing, 
and participating in sport.
        Action: Bring about a shift from car use to walking and cycling by promoting the concept of “active travel”
    Objective c) Improve air quality, especially around schools
        Action: Implement measures through planning controls and sustainable design to reduce the impacts of emissions from developments and buildings on the local community.
    Objective d) Reduce CO2 by 40% before 2020 and begin the journey to reduce to zero by 2050
        Action: Require all new development to achieve the Zero Carbon Standard.
Outcome 10) A cleaner, accessible and attractive place
    Objective a) Provide safe and accessible roads, pavements and other public spaces for everyone, especially vulnerable users
        Action: Invest over £3million to reduce flooding and risk of flooding through measures that will also enhance the public realm.
    Objective b) Improve cleanliness and reduce the levels of fly tipping
    Objective c) Provide an attractive and well-maintained public realm
    Objective d) Minimise the amount of waste generated by our residents and businesses and increase levels of recycling
        Action: Require new development to have integrated, well-designed recycling facilities.
Outcome 11) A culturally engaged place
    Objective a) Provide accessible, quality spaces for people to come together, especially for young people and children
        Action: Safeguard and strengthen the borough’s cultural heritage by effectively managing, investing in, and encouraging access to our heritage a+H6ssets, museums, and libraries.
        Action: Protect and promote creative and cultural activity and infrastructure that enables people to gain skills and employment in creative industries and increases investment into 
the borough.
    Objective b) Foster a strong and diverse cultural offer
    Objective c) Improve connectivity
        Action: Deliver major infrastructure projects to improve transport links in the borough, including improvements at Tottenham Hale and Seven Sisters
        Action: Make it easier to cycle around and through the borough by working with Transport for London on new cycle routes.
        Action: Improve walking, cycling and bus networks, as well as public transport interchanges, enabling people to move easily around the borough and through the borough.

Economy
Outcome 13) A growing economy and thriving local businesses, supported by a communit wealth-building approach
    Objective a) Maximise the benefits of council, other public sector funding and private investment for the local area
    Objective b) Make it easier to do business in Haringey
    Objective d) Provide affordable business space across the borough
        Action: Ensure the delivery of the right mix of employment spaces through the planning process.
        Action: Pilot employment intensification approaches in key employment areas where space is at a premium, such as in the Upper Lea Valley.
        Action: Use meanwhile spaces for flexible workspaces.
        Action: Pilot innovative approaches to address the affordability of workspaces in key economic sectors.
        Action: Seek to maximise employment intensity in Haringey’s industrial estates, leading by example through the use of Council land
    Objective e) Support our town centres and high streets to thrive in a changeable economy
Outcome 14) A borough where all residents have access to training and skills development opportunities and more people are supported into work
    Objective b) Increase the number of Haringey residents, especially from disadvantaged background and/or with additional needs, securing quality employment
    Objective c) Support higher numbers of local residents, in particular those from disadvantaged backgrounds, to secure quality apprenticeships
        Action: Build in need to provide apprenticeship opportunities in our regeneration and development activities including s106 agreements with developers
Outcome 15) A borough with more quality jobs with opportunities for progression
    Objective a) Ensure investment in the borough increases the number of quality jobs for local people
        Action: Leverage agreements with investors and partners to maximise benefits for local people, including by securing the delivery of S106 skills and training opportunities
Outcome 16) Regeneration with social and economic renewal at its heart, focused on Tottenham and Wood Green
    Objective a) Regeneration for the benefit of our communities within Tottenham and Wood Green
        Action: Deliver new homes and jobs on High Road West, securing substantial community benefits through the process
        Action: Continue to invest in Tottenham Hale, including new jobs, shops and community facilities
        Action: Deliver new investment and improvements in Tottenham and Wood Green, as set out in their Strategic Regeneration Frameworks, including to public spaces and community 
facilities.
    Objective b) Take account of how people feel about the way their local areas are changing, building cohesive and resilient communities
        Action: Engage with local communities to identify aspirations and priorities for their local areas
        Action: Seek to bring in external funding and use Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy budgets achieve maximum impact
    Objective c) Use council land and assets to promote improved outcomes for residents
        Action: Pilot new approaches to community hubs and spaces to deliver new community infrastructure and housing on council-owned sites.
    Objective d) Bring the physical and social infrastructure that growing communities need
        Action: Lobby regional and national government to secure the strategic investment required to help Haringey grow, including Crossrail 2, Lea Valley Rail and the Piccadilly Line 
upgrade
        Action: Work with partners and community stakeholders to ensure the right social and community infrastructure is in place to support local needs.
        Action: Secure investment from development to support the delivery of local physical and social infrastructure

Page 98



200-              -               -               -               -               200-              New net additional savings

Page 99



2021/22
£000s

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

2025/26
£000s

Total 
£000s

-               -               -               -               -               -               

Delivery Confidence – Stage 1

Indicative timescale for implementation

01/01/2021 01/04/2021

Additional income will generated In line with other boroughs.

At this stage, how confident are you that this 
option could be delivered and benefits 
realised as set out?  
(1 = not at all confident; 
5 = very confident)

3

Est. start date for consultation  DD/MM/YY Est. completion date for implementation  DD/MM/YY

Is there an opportunity for implementation 
before April 2021? Y/N ; any constraints? 

Y

Initial One-Off Investment Costs

Total 

Financial Implications Outline
 •How have the savings above been determined? Please provide a brief breakdown of the factors considered.
 •Is any addiƟonal investment required in order to deliver the proposal?
 •If relevant, how will addiƟonal income be generated and how has the amounts been determined?
 •Please describe the nature of one off implementaƟon costs (if applicable)

Page 100



Impact / non-financial benefits and disbenefits

Poorer customer service - Mitigate by general ongoing service improvement actions.
Reduced ability to respond to demands for policy and projects - Mitigate by prioritising projects and dropping lower-priority projects.

Implementation Details
 •How will the proposal be implemented? Are any addiƟonal resources required?
 •Please provide a brief Ɵmeline of the implementaƟon phase.
 •How will a successful implementaƟon be measured? Which performance indicators are most relevant?

What is the likely impact on customers and how will negative impacts be mitigated or managed?
List both positive and negative impacts. Where possible link these to outcomes (please refer to relevant Borough Plan 2019-23 
objectives and outcomes)

Positive Impacts
More structured processes 

Negative Impacts

Page 101



How does this option ensure the Council is able to meet statutory requirements?

All mentioned services are statutory functions. This will be monitored and managed through good work planning and prioritisation of 
statutory functions over non-statutory.

What is the impact on businesses, members, staff, partners and other stakeholders and how will this be mitigated or managed? How 
has this been discussed / agreed with other parties affected?
List both positive and negative impacts.

Positive Impacts
More structured processes 

Negative Impacts
Poorer customer service - Mitigate by general ongoing service improvement actions.
Reduced ability to respond to demands for policy and projects - Mitigate by prioritising projects and dropping lower-priority projects.

Page 102



Risks and Mitigation
 What are the main risks associated with this opƟon and how could they be miƟgated?(Add rows if required)

Impact 
(H/M/L)

Probability 
(H/M/L)

M M

H M

M M

H M

Signature: 
Date:

Signature: 
Date:

Finance Business Partner [Comments]

[name]

Reviewed by

Director / AD [Comments]

[name]

Has the EqIA Screening Tool been completed for this proposal? 
The Screening Tool should be completed for all Options at Stage 1.

N

EqIA Screening Tool
Is a full EqIA required? 
Full EqIAs to be undertaken at Stage 2

To be screened

Brexit / COVID-19 / market uncertainty Ongoing monitoring of market activity.

Not achieving the housing target and 
demonstrating a 5 Year Housing Land Supply

Ongoing monitoring.

Falling below the 10% threshold of major 
appeals over-turned and enter into 'special 
measures'

Ongoing monitoring, Member training.

Risk Mitigation
Government reforms 'Planning for the 
Future'

Ongoing monitoring, response to consultations, training. 
Reforms will need primary & secondary legislation & will 
likely be watered-down. Reform has been ongoing for last 
10+ years and plans have been and functions have had to 
constantly adapt to date.

Page 103



Financial Benefits Summary

2021/22
£000s

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

2025/26
£000s

Total 
£000s

50                -               -               -               -               -               

Description of Option:
 •What is the proposal in essence? What is its scope? What will change? 
 •What will be the impact on the Council’s objecƟves and outcomes (please refer to relevant Borough Plan 2019-23 objecƟves and 

outcomes, and Borough Plan Evidence Packs) 
 •How will the proposal deliver the benefits outlined? 

[Proposals will be mapped to the any new Borough Plan Priorities/Objectives/Outcomes as they emerge – please take account of any 
likely changes when framing proposals]

To identify the largest energy consumers in the Corporate Estate, where the bills are paid for directly from the Council revenue 
accounts.  And to confirm that these buildings will remain within the corporate portfolio long term.  Identifying the 10 key buildings.  
Then to develop an Energy Assessment which will set out the measures needed to reduce the ongoing energy demands (heating, 
cooling, and Elec) in these buildings. Bringing the buildings as close to Zero Carbon as it possible within a viable payback period of the 
buildings life.    In doing this the Council will be delivering on the Borough Plan - Zero Carbon Ambition, and will make revenue savings 
due to reduction in energy bills.  The value of this saving will increase as it has been identified that future energy bills will be 
increasing each year by between 6-10%.  

Please provide indicative financial benefits information, including any initial investment costs below.  Where figures are speculative 
and require further detailed work to refine these, please indicate this in the text box below.

Revenue Impacts
All figures shown on an incremental 
basis

New net additional savings

Priority: Economy/Place Responsible Officer: David Joyce

Affected Service(s) 
and AD:

Carbon Management, PBSS Contact / Lead: Joe Baker 

Business Planning / MTFS Options EC103
2021/22 – 2025/26

Please fill this pro forma out fully. It is important that options brought forward from Stage 1 are worked up into fuller, more robust 
proposals that are fit for progression to the formal decision-making process. 

Title of Option: Corporate Estate Energy Efficiency Programme

Page 104



2021/22
£000s

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

2025/26
£000s

Total 
£000s

50                -               -               -               -               50                

Delivery Confidence – Stage 1

Indicative timescale for implementation

01/10/2020 01/10/2021

Is there an opportunity for implementation 
before April 2021? Y/N ; any constraints? 

Limited on measures. 

Total 

Financial Implications Outline
 •How have the savings above been determined? Please provide a brief breakdown of the factors considered.
 •Is any addiƟonal investment required in order to deliver the proposal?
 •If relevant, how will addiƟonal income be generated and how has the amounts been determined?
 •Please describe the nature of one off implementaƟon costs (if applicable)

The figures above are estimates at this stage .   These will be determined once the buildings are identified (there current energy use), 
the measures that could be installed (the cost), and the then the savings made.    The savings are related to energy consumption in 
the buildings, and the reduction in costs. It should also factor in future energy costs, and this will increase the impact of the saving.   

At this stage, how confident are you that this 
option could be delivered and benefits 
realised as set out?  
(1 = not at all confident; 
5 = very confident)

4

Est. start date for consultation  DD/MM/YY Est. completion date for implementation  DD/MM/YY

Initial One-Off Investment Costs

Page 105



Impact / non-financial benefits and disbenefits

 1.Supports the boroughs Zero Carbon AmbiƟon 
 2.Increases the ability to rent out space in buildings legally  
 3.Will demonstrate to staff that the Council is saving money and improving environmental performance. 

Negative Impacts
 1.Measures to heaƟng systems may only be able to be installed during the summer (when systems are less used)
 2.There may be interference in office space while measures are installed (such as Double Glazing). 

Implementation Details
 •How will the proposal be implemented? Are any addiƟonal resources required?
 •Please provide a brief Ɵmeline of the implementaƟon phase.
 •How will a successful implementaƟon be measured? Which performance indicators are most relevant?

 1.Appoint a project manager to idenƟfy the buildings (that will remain long term assets) where measures could be delivered in / 
viable in. 

 2.Gather details on the building
 3.Appoint an M&E engineer to review all the buildings and bring forward business cases on the measures, costs, suppliers, funding 

options, delivery and installation processes. 
 4.Bring forward the business case to drawdown capital 
 5.Implement 
 6.Repeat stages 2-5 on all buildings. 

What is the likely impact on customers and how will negative impacts be mitigated or managed?
List both positive and negative impacts. Where possible link these to outcomes (please refer to relevant Borough Plan 2019-23 
objectives and outcomes)

Positive Impacts

Page 106



Negative Impacts
 1.Project design and business case will have not impact on the working environment and partnership. 
 2.InstallaƟons may impact on the work space, but this brings posiƟve PR as measures are installed. 

How does this option ensure the Council is able to meet statutory requirements?

yes - the ability to rent out office space legally. 

What is the impact on businesses, members, staff, partners and other stakeholders and how will this be mitigated or managed? How 
has this been discussed / agreed with other parties affected?
List both positive and negative impacts.

Positive Impacts
 1.Project design and business case will have not impact on the working environment and partnership. 
 2.InstallaƟons may impact on the work space, but this brings posiƟve PR as measures are installed. 

Page 107



Risks and Mitigation
 What are the main risks associated with this opƟon and how could they be miƟgated?(Add rows if required)

Impact 
(H/M/L)

Probability 
(H/M/L)

H H
H M

H M

Signature: 

Date:

Signature: 

Date:

[name]

Director / AD [Comments]

Rob Krzyszowski

Finance Business Partner [Comments]

Has the EqIA Screening Tool been completed for this proposal? 
The Screening Tool should be completed for all Options at Stage 1.

Yes one has, this proposal is likely to have no/minimal 
impact on groups that share the protected characteristics 
or other disadvantaged groups.  It focuses on Buildings 
operational costs.   EqIA Screening Tool

Is a full EqIA required? 
Full EqIAs to be undertaken at Stage 2

no. 

Reviewed by

Lack of PM to oversee the works Asked for ability to recruit. 
Lack of clarity on the long term use of 
buildings 

Get asset strategy agreed before assessments start, 
identify Leisure Centres and relationship with Fusion. 

Business cases may not make the full 
financial savings

Review previous works on buildings 

Risk Mitigation

Page 108



Housing 

 
Expansion of CPO budget. In response to the growing number of empty homes in the borough, 
Cabinet agreed a refreshed version of the Council’s existing empty homes policy in July 2020 - the 
Policy’s overarching aim is to bring all empty homes back into use.  Building on the work already 
carried out to manage empty homes, the refreshed Policy offers a variety of tools and balances 
support and advice for landlords and an enforcement approach when efforts to work with the owner 
fails. The strengthened enforcement approach requires an increase in capital funding and Cabinet 
agreed at its meeting in July to - Note that a capital bid of £5m will be made to increase the CPO 
budget to £6m as part of the 2021/22 budget setting process.  The increase in capital will meet the 
increase in CPO action and the introduction of Empty Dwelling Management Orders.  

Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPO). Where it can be proven that no other means is available to the 
Council which will result in the property being returned to use, the Council can seek to use 
Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPO). The Council’s CPO powers are used as a final option and are 
governed by legislation and must be in accordance with Government guidance.  In pursuing a CPO  
the Council must show that all necessary funding is likely to be available to bring this property back 
into use as housing accommodation, failure to do so is likely to result in the  Secretary of State 
refusing the application. Capital funding is currently available for the purchase of empty homes, 
however the current market value of homes in the borough often allows for only one or two 
purchases to be made at any one time.  

Empty Dwelling Management Orders (EDMOs). Cabinet agreed to extend enforcement powers to 
include EDMOs. EDMOs bridge the gap between voluntary measures and CPOs.  The process is 
complex, resource-intensive, and requires two stages, an interim and final stage, at the end of which 
the council can let and renovate the property and then recover the costs of that process through 
rental income. 

The bid is for £5m in 2021/22. 

  

SCHEME 
REF

SCHEME NAME £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

509 CPO - Empty Homes 6,000 1,000 1,000 0 0 8,000

Housing (GF) Homes & Communities 6,000 1,000 1,000 0 0 8,000

2021/22 
Budget 

2022/23 
Budget

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Budget 

2025/26 
Budget 

2021/22 - 
25/26
Total

Page 109



Economy 

 
The Good Economy Recovery Plan. The plan was published in August 2020 and includes a set of 
subsidiary strategies.  The High Streets Recovery Action Plan was published alongside and includes a 
list of both funded and unfunded projects.  Of the unfunded projects, some can be capitalised.  
Officers have produced outline costings for these activities, which this bid seeks to cover.  Costs that 
can be capitalised include: 

 Making High Streets Fit for purpose - £500k (building on short-term Reopening High 
Streets Safely interventions and targeting high streets not covered by that grant) 

SCHEME 
REF

SCHEME NAME £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

401 Tottenham Hale Green Space 810 2,961 5,096 3,794 0 12,661

402 Tottenham Hale Streets 7,930 850 600 350 0 9,730

4003 Tottenham Hale Housing Zone Funding 6,663 4,326 0 3,663 0 14,652

411 Tottenham Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) 1,007 2,000 1,200 0 0 4,207

421 HRW Acquisition 90,000 3,940 6,830 6,000 0 106,770

429 Site Acq (Tott & Wood Green) 14,750 14,000 10,000 12,000 0 50,750

430 Wards Corner CPO 10,000 0 0 0 0 10,000

464 Bruce Castle 4,000 6,000 8,500 0 0 18,500

465 District Energy Network (DEN) 1,500 6,500 3,500 0 0 11,500

480 Wood Green Regen (2) 4,900 8,000 7,750 8,664 0 29,313

481 Strategic Investment Pot 1,987 1,950 0 0 0 3,937

482 Strategic Property 1,273 254 3 0 0 1,530

4001
Maintenance of Tottenham Green 
Workshops

50 0 0 0 0 50

4002
Northumberland Park estate area public 
realm 

500 0 0 0 0 500

4005 SME Workspace Intensification 2,000 3,500 4,000 0 0 9,500

4006 Acquisition of head leases 10,000 12,000 0 0 0 22,000

4007
Tottenham Hale Decentralised Energy 
Network (DEN)

1,814 2,000 5,000 7,000 7,500 23,314

4008
Wood Green Decentralised Energy Network 
(DEN)

1,614 2,000 2,500 7,500 7,500 21,114

4009 Additonal Carbon Reduction Project 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 0 12,000

4010 Selby Urban Village Project 5,000 25,000 25,000 15,000 17,316 87,316

473 Enterprising Tottenham High Road (ETHR) 1,730 451 0 0 0 2,181

474 Tottenham High Road Strategy 600 587 0 0 0 1,187

475 Heart of Tottenham (HOT) 866 0 0 0 0 866

488 Liveable Seven Sisters (LSS) 1,227 2,250 1,019 0 0 4,496

493 Bruce Grove Yards (BGY) 1,300 1,670 218 0 0 3,188

4993 Pride in the High Road (PITHR) 400 432 0 0 0 832

404 Good Economy Recovery plan 1,400 500 100 0 0 2,000

453
New workspace scheme at Stoneleigh 
Road car park

400 1,000 0 0 0 1,400

454 HALS Improvement Programme 125 0 0 0 0 125

455
Replacement Cloud based IT solutions for 
Planning, Building Control & Land Charges

652 0 0 0 0 652

Economy - Growth & Employment 177,498 105,171 84,316 66,971 32,316 466,271

2021/22 
Budget 

2022/23 
Budget

2023/24 
Budget 

2024/25 
Budget 

2025/26 
Budget 

2021/22 - 
25/26
Total

Page 110



 Meanwhile...in Haringey - £400k (capital works to bring vacant shops into use, new 
signage treatment, fit out and occupation with Haringey SMEs/creatives/producers - 
focus on Council premises but with investigations for private vacant buildings, to be 
match funded in return) 

 Shutter Gallery - £250k build on pilot project, circa £30k per parade for 10 creative 
murals/treatments 

 Market trading investment - £30k capital investment for TGM, £30k for Crouch End / 
other Town Centres 

 'Welcome Back' to town centres - signage/commissions at key gateways 
 Shopfront improvement schemes - £550k for schemes in 4 town centres, circa 20 

businesses 
 Unallocated - £240k 

It is intended that this is a borough-wide allocation, which would concentrate activities on areas with 
highest concentrations of businesses to maximise impact.  This would address existing area gaps (no 
capital funding currently for Crouch End or any other businesses outside Wood Green and 
Tottenham) and gaps in uncommitted spend (existing allocations of capital for Tottenham and Wood 
Green are project-specific and do not include allocations for the above projects).  This allocation 
would deliver against the Place and Economy priorities of the Borough Plan and would be pivotal in 
allowing the Council to meaningfully respond to the pressures created by the Covid-19 pandemic.   

 

An allocation from the approved capital programme contingency has been made for 2020/21 of 
£0.25m. The balance of funding for the scheme is £1.4m in 2021/22, £0.5m in 2022/23 and £0.1m in 
2023/24.  

The 551b High Road. This bid is to expand the existing proposal for a mixed-use development. The 
current scheme at the site is not viable and initial studies indicate that a larger project would be 
viable. The project sits within the 'Enterprising Tottenham High Road' scheme. The bid is seeking to 
cover the costs of delivering a larger building, with increased outputs. The project has been included 
as part of the Council’s Future High Streets Fund bid which seeks a contribution of £2m of grant 
funding from MHCLG, with the result announced in the Autumn. As it is unclear whether the bid will 
be successful, this new Capital Bid is intended to allow the larger project to continue if the MHCLG 
funding is not secured. The project is high priority within the repair and renewal plans for the 
following reasons: 

• A viability appraisal has concluded that the larger option is viable if let at market 
rents  

• The project is supported by contractually committed external match funding 
• It is part of a wider programme (Enterprising Tottenham High Road) and forms 

evidence to support a current bid to Future High Streets Fund  
• The building is a Council owned asset, and so further investment will allow the 

Council to extract social value through new employment opportunities  
• The project delivery is in line with Community Wealth Building principles, targeting a 

locally orientated multi-disciplinary design team and maximising opportunities for 
paid local commissioning  

• The project’s ambitious sustainability targets align with the Council’s target to 
become a Carbon Neutral Borough by 2041  

Page 111



• The project supports the GERP’s top priorities, including helping businesses into 
work/training through offering work experience/apprenticeships and delivering 
new, high quality workspace  

• The project represents significant investment into the physical environment of the 
High Street (Tottenham High Road) through delivery of publicly accessible yard 
space and a new F&B facility. If the Council is successful with FHSF in the autumn the 
capital bid would be reviewed in consultation with lead and ward members. 

 

The funding for the scheme is £0.750m in 2021/22, £1.250m in 2022/23.  

Stoneleigh Walk Car Park. This project covers a range of schemes to develop mixed use housing and 
employment space on several council owned car parks. The car parks involved are: 

 
Stoneleigh Rd Car Park C:  
Stoneleigh Rd Car Park B  
Stoneleigh Rd Car Park A  
Tottenham Green Workshop Car Park 
Somerset Rd Car Park 

 

The scheme is part of the Future High Streets Fund bid. Should the bid be successful then this bid will 
not be required. Should it not be successful then it will be funded through existing resources. This is 
a new bid for a capital scheme covering the mixed use development of 7 Council owned car park 
sites supporting employment uses, housing delivery (c. 82 homes) and placemaking. This bid is for 
the non housing costs only. The housing related costs will be contained within the HRA capital 
programme.  

The project is included as part of the Council’s Future High Streets Fund bid which seeks a 
contribution of £2.39m of grant funding from MHCLG, with the result announced in the Autumn. As 
it is unclear whether the bid will be successful, this new Capital Bid is intended to allow the project 
to continue if the MHCLG funding is not secured.  

The bid cost includes: 

Design team fees for masterplanning and development of the employment elements of the 
scheme to RIBA 4 (tender). The housing elements of the project will be separated at the 
commencement of RIBA Stage 2 and will be delivered and funded by the Housing Delivery 
Team. 

 Masterplanning design fees to assist with early viability appraisals and brief 
development - £100k  

 Design fees for employment uses from RIBA 0-4 - £450k  
 Surveys and due diligence - £100k  
 QS fees - £50k  
 Planning fees (Pre app and QRP) - £20k  
 Legal fees - £15k  
 Procurement/DPS fees - £15k  
 Delivery costs for 1 workspace element - £1m  
 Total - £1.75m  

Page 112



Currently the early stages of the project are being funded through the existing capital programme.  
The proposed allocation for future years is £0.4m in 2021/22, £1.0m in 2022/23.  

HALS Improvement. The HALS bid is to remodel their existing accommodation to facilitate new 
models of service delivery as well as investment in ICT to improve the online learning experience for 
learners and the wider Haringey workforce. This bid provides for deploying a multi-modal learning 
solution, that will allow HALS to offer a hybrid approach to delivering courses, supporting learners at 
its Wood Green Facility, online in their homes, and out in the community. It includes a project to 
procure and deploy a corporate Learning Management Solution, taking advantage of an opportunity 
to combine the requirements of HR Workforce to replace the Fuse Learning Solution, with HALS 
need for a VLE and learning delivery needs from services across the council. The proposal will 
increase HALS capacity and reach, improve the quality of their facilities and online delivery, 
increasing their engagement with the community and opportunities to secure future funding. While 
the corporate LMS solution will provide a more compliant workforce, delivering better knowledge 
retention, and improved rates of training completion, while streamlining administration and course 
management contributing to improved opportunities and outcomes for learners. The risks in not 
progressing with this piece of work are, a severely degraded learner experience, an inability to meet 
the learning needs of our community in light of the Coivd-19 restriction to the operating model, and 
an increasing risk of critical failure of HALS infrastructure. The Fuse contract would also have to be 
extended beyond Aug-21, and/or alternative service specific LMS solutions procured, at greater 
council wide expense. The combined cost of these solutions is £300k over the next two financial 
years (through to Dec-21). The 2020/21 cost of £175k will be met from the existing IT Capital Budget 
and this bid is to fund the additional expenditure of £125k. 

Cloud Based ICT for planning and building control. The planning and building control service have 
identified a need to move to a cloud based online system that will reduce risks and costs and 
improve the service offer. The project will commence and complete in 2021 so the spend profile will 
be £652k in 2021/22 

 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



MTFS Savings Tracker (2020/21 - 2024/25)

Priority: Economy & Housing
MTFS 

Savings 

Ref

Cabinet 

Decision 

Date

Saving proposal Description
2020/21

£'000s

2021/22

£'000s

2022/23

£'000s

2023/24 

£'000s

2024/25 

£'000s

Total    

£'000      

Economy
20/25-

EC03

11-Feb-20 Alternative funding model for 

sites delivery work

Regeneration officers are engaged in a significant amount of 

work on the delivery of sites which will result in new housing 

(including affordable housing).  This proposal is to review that 

activity and identify where general fund revenue could be 

displaced by either S106 funding or new capital budgets.

100 0 0 0 0 100

EC5 12-Feb-19 Outdoor media adverstising Proposal to generate new income from outdoor media, utilising 

the council’s landholdings by identifying sites suitable for 

outdoor installations. It is estimated that net income in 2020/21 

would be at least £100k, and increasing significantly over future 

years.  

15

20/25-

EC02

11-Feb-20 Reduction of North Tottenham 

Regeneration revenue budgets

The proposal is to reduce general fund revenue costs in North 

Tottenham budgets (Northumberland Park and High Road West) 

by reducing expenditure on e.g. some community engamenent 

activities and events. 

75

20/25-

EC01

11-Feb-20 Head Lease Acquisition 

Programme

The proposal is to allocate capital budget to enable the 

acquisition by the Council of as many head-leases as possible on 

sites where the Council already owns the freehold, in order for 

the Council to stop paying rent to these landlords and to receive 

all of the passing rent from those properties which are tenanted 

by commercial or other tenants.  

100 120 130 120 470

20/25-

EC04

11-Feb-20 Use of Strategic Acquisitions 

budget for sites delivery work

The Regeneration service has submitted a bid for new capital 

funding for Employment-Led sites delivery.  This proposal would 

seek to offset the impact of these costs on revenue budgets. The 

proposal is to identify costs within the service that are eligible for 

this funding, and to apply LBH Capital to offset LBH revenue 

spend.  Achieving these savings will require a corresponding 

capital allocation.   

75 0 0 0 0 75

P
age 115



MTFS 

Savings 

Ref

Cabinet 

Decision 

Date

Saving proposal Description
2020/21

£'000s

2021/22

£'000s

2022/23

£'000s

2023/24 

£'000s

2024/25 

£'000s

Total    

£'000      

20/25-

EC05

11-Feb-20 Increased capitalisation of staff 

time and project costs

As of 19/20, the Regeneration service has rapidly increased its 

capitalisation of costs, which is now high in all Area Regeneration 

budgets. The proposal is to capitalise further, using an increased 

capital budget for Tottenham Hale.  A bid to increase the existing 

Streets & Spaces and Green & Open Spaces capital lines 

(Schemes 401 and 402) has been submitted, on the grounds of 

construction inflation and increased capitalisation requirements. 

75 0 0 0 0 75

20/25-

EC06

11-Feb-20 Increased recharge to HRA The service is now engaged in a significant amount of work on 

estates and on the delivery of new affordable housing, which 

would be eligible for HRA spend. The proposal is to increase the 

amount of revenue funding provided from the HRA each year.  A 

review of the HRA budget is underway, and it is proposed that 

this work accomodates an increased recharge from Regeneration 

on a yearly basis, reflecting new workstreams on estates and 

towards the delivery of affordable housing. 

100 0 0 0 0 100

20/25-

EC07

11-Feb-20 HRP Senior Restructure In June 2019, the S&R commitee approved the senior 

managment restructure within Housing, Regeneration & 

Planning. With a number of changes taking place within the 

Directoraite, the restructure was an opportunity to streamline 

the structure, align responsibilities to achieve maximum 

efficiency and eliminate duplication while recognising the need 

to build a confident and stable approach to Housing, 

Regeneration and Planning.  

30 0 0 0 0 30

20/25-

EC08

11-Feb-20 Strategic Property Unit – New 

Income Outdoor Media

This proposal comprises an opportunity to achieve new income 

potential by securing rental payments from outdoor media 

companies. This includes digital billboards and an innovative 

building wrap with a digital display for advertising purposes and 

council messages.

100 0 0 0 0 100

20/25-

EC09

11-Feb-20 Strategic Property Unit – New 

Income Rent Reviews

 The saving arises from rent reviews that have been identified as 

overdue.  Two agency employees have achieved the target 

savings in the years 2018/2020 to date and further savings have 

been identified and agreed with tenants as rent increases.
100 0 0 0 0 100

P
age 116



MTFS 

Savings 

Ref

Cabinet 

Decision 

Date

Saving proposal Description
2020/21

£'000s

2021/22

£'000s

2022/23

£'000s

2023/24 

£'000s

2024/25 

£'000s

Total    

£'000      

20/25-

EC10

11-Feb-20 Strategic Property Unit – New 

Income 5g

This proposal comprises an opportunity to achieve new income 

potential by securing rental payments from Mobile Operators 

and Infrastructure providers.
20 0 0 0 0 20

20/25-

HO02

11-Feb-20 HfH and Council Housing 

Programme- funding for 

Carbon Management team 

time 

The Carbon Management Team undertakes a significant amount 

of work for Homes for Haringey and the Council housing delivery 

team. This proposal would make provision for the Carbon 

Management Team to recharge the Housing Revenue Account 

for this work. This work is undertaken by staff funded through 

general fund revenue budgets, and as such an equivalent saving 

can be made to the general fund revenue budget through 

recharge from the HRA. 

40 0 0 0 0 40

Total: Economy 830 120 130 120 0 1,200
Housing

PL1 43508 Additional HMO Licensing 

Scheme for HMO

Extend the current Additional Licensing scheme for HMOs not 

governed by Mandatory Licensing and introduce a Selective 

Licensing scheme to 20% of its geographical area for all other 

private sector dwellings covered by the Housing Act 2004.  All 

licensing schemes are intended to address the impact of poor 

quality housing, rogue landlords and anti-social tenants. 

400 0 0 0 0 400

HO1 12-Feb-19 Temporary accommodation 

reduction plan

Reduce TA costs, as detailed in the TA Reduction Plan. Proposals 

include initiatives to prevent homelessness, improve economic 

position of those in TA, and help support those in TA to move on. 

Revenue costs covered by the Flexible Homelessness Support 

Grant. Plan also includes proposals to increase supply of low cost 

TA through new purchase, repair and management joint venture 

partnership, and capital investment in new Community Benefit 

Society. Please note that due to the additional costs incurred due 

to unforeseen works at BWF, it may not be possible to meet the 

projected savings. 
708 573 0 0 0 1281

P
age 117



MTFS 

Savings 

Ref

Cabinet 

Decision 

Date

Saving proposal Description
2020/21

£'000s

2021/22

£'000s

2022/23

£'000s

2023/24 

£'000s

2024/25 

£'000s

Total    

£'000      

20/25-

HO01

11-Feb-20 Transferring PSLs to the CBS Private Sector Leasing properties are leased by the Council from 

private landlords for between one and five years with a 

guaranteed rent for the term of the lease. Leases are mainly 

based on 90% of the 2011 LHA plus a £40 a week management 

fee (the latter being a transfer from FHSG).  The CBS has been 

established to lease properties purchased by the Council to use 

them as TA or to discharge homelessness. Unlike the Council, the 

CBS can charge the current (2019) Local Housing Allowance 

(LHA) for the area the property is located in. Therefore moving 

these leases could mean total additonal rental income of £1.19m 

if all leases were transferred.   This would require, in each case, 

the landlords agreement to do so and additonal incentives may 

be required. A reduction in savings of 25% has thus been 

included to account for this and additonal costs
68 136 136 136 136 612

Total: Housing 1,176 709 136 136 136 2,293 P
age 118


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 Scrutiny of the 2021/22 Draft Budget / 5 Year Medium Term Financial Strategy (2021/22 - 2025/26)
	Appendix B - 2021-22 Draft Budget and 2021-2026 Medium Term Financial Strategy FINAL
	Appendix C - Housing and Regen New Savings Proposals
	Appendix C - Housing and Regen Capital Bids
	Appendix D - Pre-Agreed Savings - Economy & Housing


